
 

 

1 

PLANNING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

 

Date: Wednesday, 8 September 2021   
Time 10.30 am  
Place: Surrey County Council, Woodhatch Place, 11 Cockshot Hill, Reigate, 

Surrey, RH2 8EF 
 

 

Contact: Joss Butler   
   
Email: joss.butler@surreycc.gov.uk  
  

 
APPOINTED MEMBERS [11] 

Tim Hall (Chairman) Leatherhead and Fetcham East; 
Ernest Mallett MBE West Molesey; 
Penny Rivers Godalming North; 
Jeffrey Gray Caterham Valley; 
Jonathan Hulley Foxhills, Thorpe & Virginia Water; 
Victor Lewanski Reigate; 
David Lewis Cobham; 
Scott Lewis Woodham and New Haw; 
Catherine Powell Farnham North; 
Richard Tear Bagshot, Windlesham and Chobham; 
Jeremy Webster (Vice-Chairman) Caterham Hill; 

 
EX OFFICIO MEMBERS (NON-VOTING)  [4] 

Tim Oliver 
Becky Rush 

Leader of the Council 
Deputy Leader of the Council  

Weybridge; 
Warlingham; 

Helyn Clack Chair of the Council Dorking Rural; 
Saj Hussain  Vice-Chair of the Council Knaphill and Goldsworth West; 

 
APPOINTED SUBSTITUTES [12] 

Stephen Cooksey Dorking South and the Holmwoods; 
Nick Darby The Dittons; 
Amanda Boote The Byfleets; 
Luke Bennett Banstead, Woodmansterne & Chipstead; 
David Harmer Waverley Western Villages; 
Trefor Hogg Camberley East; 
Riasat Khan Woking North; 
Carla Morson Ash; 
Mark Sugden Hinchley Wood, Claygate and Oxshott; 
Buddhi Weerasinghe Lower Sunbury and Halliford; 
Fiona White Guildford West; 
Keith Witham Worplesdon; 

 
 

 
Register of planning applications: http://planning.surreycc.gov.uk/ 



 

 
2 



 

 
3 

AGENDA 
 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

To receive any apologies for absence and notices of substitutions 
under Standing Order 41. 
 

 

2  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
 

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2021.  
 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

3  PETITIONS 
 

To receive any petitions from members of the public in accordance 
with Standing Order 84 (please see note 7 below). 
 

 

4  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 

To answer any questions received from local government electors 
within Surrey in accordance with Standing Order 85 (please see 
note 8 below). 
 

 

5  MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME 
 
To answer any questions received from Members of the Council in 
accordance with Standing Order 68. 
 

 

6  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the 
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter  

(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or  
(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in 

respect of any item(s) of business being considered at 
this meeting 

NOTES: 

 Members are reminded that they must not participate in any 
item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

 As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any 
interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the 
Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom 
the Member is living as a spouse or civil partner) 

 Members with a significant personal interest may participate 
in the discussion and vote on that matter unless that 
interest could be reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
4 

7  SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL PROPOSAL MO/2021/1087 - ST 
ANDREWS RC SCHOOL, GRANGE ROAD, LEATHERHEAD 
SURREY KT22 7JP 
 

Permanent one form of entry expansion comprising two storey 
extension to the existing Earl Building to provide additional 
teaching and supporting accommodation; demolition of existing 
‘Woodlands Building’ and erection of a replacement two storey 
standalone block comprising teaching and supporting 
accommodation; permanent retention of two demountable 
classroom units; modification of existing Main Building and 
Performing Arts Building elevations to provide new external 
windows and doors to suit altered internal layout and ventilation 
strategy; and associated external works and landscaping. 

(Pages 7 - 60) 

8  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 
Recommendation: That under Section 100(A) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for 
the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information under the relevant 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

PART TWO – IN PRIVATE 

 

 

9  ENFORCEMENT UPDATE 

 
Confidential:  Not for publication under Paragraph 3 

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
 

(Pages 61 - 70) 

10  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Planning & Regulatory Committee will be 
on 13 October 2021.  
 

 

 
 

Joanna Killian 
Chief Executive 

31 August 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
5 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 

 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.  To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at 
reception for details. 
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings.  Please liaise with 
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending 
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems. 
 

Thank you for your co-operation 

 

Note:  This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet 
site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
filmed.  The images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the meeting room and 
using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of 
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.   
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and 
Democratic Services at the meeting 

 

 

NOTES: 

 
1. Members are requested to let the Democratic Services Officer have the wording of any 

motions and amendments not later than one hour before the start of the meeting. 

2. Substitutions must be notified to the Democratic Services Officer by the absent Member 
or group representative at least half an hour in advance of the meeting. 

3. Planning officers will introduce their report and be able to provide information or advice to 
Members during the meeting. They can also be contacted before the meeting if you 
require information or advice on any matter. Members are strongly encouraged to 
contact the relevant case officer in advance of the meeting if you are looking to amend or 
add conditions or are likely to be proposing a reason for refusal. It is helpful if officers are 
aware of these matters in advance so that they can better advise Members both before 
and during the meeting. 

4. Members of the public can speak at the Committee meeting on any planning application 
that is being reported to the Committee for decision, provided they have made written 
representations on the application at least 14 days in advance of the meeting, and 
provided they have registered their wish to do so with the Democratic Services Officer no 
later than midday on the working day before the meeting.  The number of public 
speakers is restricted to five objectors and five supporters in respect of each application. 



 

 
6 

5. Petitions from members of the public may be presented to the Committee provided that 
they contain 100 or more signatures and relate to a matter within the Committee’s terms 
of reference. The presentation of petitions on the following matters is not allowed: (a) 
matters which are “confidential” or “exempt” under the Local Government Access to 
Information Act 1985; and (b) planning applications. Notice must be given in writing at 
least 14 days before the meeting. Please contact the Democratic Services Officer for 
further advice. 

6. Notice of public questions must be given in writing at least 7 days before the meeting. 
Members of the public may ask one question relating to a matter within the Committee’s 
terms of reference. Questions on “confidential” or “exempt” matters and planning 
applications are not allowed. Questions should relate to general policy and not detail. 
Please contact the Democratic Services Officer for further advice. 

7. On 10 December 2013, the Council agreed amendments to the Scheme of Delegation so 
that: 

 All details pursuant (applications relating to a previously granted permission) and 
non-material amendments (minor issues that do not change the principles of an 
existing permission) will be delegated to officers (irrespective of the number of 
objections). 

 Any full application with fewer than 5 objections, which is in accordance with the 
development plan and national polices will be delegated to officers. 

 Any full application with fewer than 5 objections that is not in accordance with the 
development plan (i.e. waste development in Green Belt) and national policies will be 
delegated to officers in liaison with either the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the 
Planning & Regulatory Committee. 

 Any application can come before committee if requested by the local member or a 
member of the Planning & Regulatory Committee. 
 

The revised Scheme of Delegation came into effect as of the date of the Council 
decision. 

 
 



 

 
7 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 – GUIDANCE ON THE DETERMINATION OF 
PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
 
This guidance forms part of and should be read in conjunction with the Planning Considerations 
section in the following committee reports.  
 
Surrey County Council as County Planning Authority (also known as Mineral or Waste Planning 
Authority in relation to matters relating to mineral or waste development) is required under 
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) (1990 Act) when 
determining planning applications to “have regard to (a) the provisions of the development plan, 
so far as material to the application, (b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to 
the application, and (c) any other material considerations”. This section of the 1990 Act must be 
read together with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (2004 Act), 
which provides that: “If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the planning Acts the determination must be made in 
accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.” 
 
Development plan 

 
In Surrey the adopted development plan consists of the: 

 Surrey Minerals Local Plan 2011(comprised of the Core Strategy and Primary 
Aggregates Development Plan Documents (DPD)) 

 Surrey Waste Local Plan 2019-2033 adopted December 2020 (comprised of the Surrey 
Waste Local Plan Part 1 Policies and Surrey Waste Local Plan Part 2 Sites)  

 Aggregates Recycling Joint DPD for the Minerals and Waste Plans 2013 (Aggregates 
Recycling DPD 2013) 

 Any saved local plan policies and the adopted Local Development Documents 
(development plan documents and supplementary planning documents) prepared by the 
eleven Surrey district/borough councils in Surrey 

 South East Plan 2009 Policy NRM6 Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (apart 
from a policy relating to the former Upper Heyford Air Base in Oxfordshire the rest of the 
plan was revoked on 25 March 2013) 

 Any neighbourhood plans (where they have been approved by the local community at 
referendum) 

 
Set out in each report are the development plan documents and policies which provide the 
development plan framework relevant to the application under consideration.  
 
Material considerations 
 
Material considerations will vary from planning application to planning application and can 
include: relevant European policy; the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021 and 
subsequent updates; the March 2014 national Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) and updates; 
National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) October 2014; Waste Management Plan for 
England 2021; extant planning policy statements; Government Circulars and letters to Chief 
Planning Officers; emerging local development documents (being produced by Surrey County 
Council, the district/borough council or neighbourhood forum in whose area the application site 
lies).  
 
National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance  

 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was revised in July 2021. The revised NPPF 
replaces the previous NPPF published in March 2012 and revised in July 2018 and February 
2019. It continues to provide consolidated guidance for local planning authorities and decision 
takers in relation to decision-taking (determining planning applications) and in preparing plans 
(plan making).  

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/revised-national-planning-policy-framework


 

 
8 

 
The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these are expected 
to be applied and the associated March 2014 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) provides 
related guidance. The NPPF should be read alongside other national planning policies on 
Waste, Travellers, Planning for Schools Development, Sustainable Drainage Systems, Parking, 
and Starter Homes . 
 
At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development (paragraph 10). 
The NPPF makes clear that the planning system has three overarching objectives in order to 
achieve sustainable development, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually 
supportive ways in order to take opportunities to secure net gains across each of the different 
objectives. These objectives are economic, social and environmental. 
 
The presumption in favour of sustainable development in the NPPF does not change the 
statutory principle that determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with 
the adopted development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is 
one of those material considerations. In determining planning applications the NPPF (paragraph 
11) states that development proposals that accord with the development plan should be 
approved without delay. Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies 
which are most important in determining an application are out of date, permission should be 
granted unless the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed or any adverse 
impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed 
against the policies in the NPPF as a whole. 
 
The NPPF aims to strengthen local decision making and reinforce the importance of up to date 
plans. Annex 1 paragraph 219 states that in determining planning applications, local planning 
authorities should give due weight to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies are to the policies in the Framework, the 
greater the weight they may be given). 
 
HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 
GUIDANCE FOR INTERPRETATION 

 
The Human Rights Act 1998 does not incorporate the European Convention on Human Rights 
into English law.  It does, however, impose an obligation on public authorities not to act 
incompatibly with those Convention rights specified in Schedule 1 of that Act.  As such, those 
persons directly affected by the adverse effects of decisions of public authorities may be able to 
claim a breach of their human rights.  Decision makers are required to weigh the adverse impact 
of the development against the benefits to the public at large. 
 
The most commonly relied upon articles of the European Convention are Articles 6, 8 and Article 
1 of Protocol 1.  These are specified in Schedule 1 of the Act. 
 
Article 6 provides the right to a fair and public hearing.  Officers must be satisfied that the 
application has been subject to proper public consultation and that the public have had an 
opportunity to make representations in the normal way and that any representations received 
have been properly covered in the report. 
 
Article 8 covers the right to respect for a private and family life.  This has been interpreted as the 
right to live one’s personal life without unjustified interference.  Officers must judge whether the 
development proposed would constitute such an interference and thus engage Article 8. 
 
Article 1 of Protocol 1 provides that a person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions and that no-one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest.  
Possessions will include material possessions, such as property, and also planning permissions 

http://planningguidance.communities.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-for-waste
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6078/2113371.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/6316/1966097.pdf
http://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-vote-office/December%202014/18%20December/6.%20DCLG-sustainable-drainage-systems.pdf
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2015-03-25/HCWS488/
http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2015-03-02/HCWS324/


 

 
9 

and possibly other rights.  Officers will wish to consider whether the impact of the proposed 
development will affect the peaceful enjoyment of such possessions. 
 
These are qualified rights, which means that interference with them may be justified if deemed 
necessary in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being of the 
country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, or for the 
protection of the rights and freedoms of others. 
 
Any interference with a Convention right must be proportionate to the intended objective.  This 
means that such an interference should be carefully designed to meet the objective in question 
and not be arbitrary, unfair or overly severe. 
 
European case law suggests that interference with the human rights described above will only 
be considered to engage those Articles and thereby cause a breach of human rights where that 
interference is significant. Officers will therefore consider the impacts of all applications for 
planning permission and will express a view as to whether an Article of the Convention may be 
engaged. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

MINUTES of the meeting of the PLANNING AND REGULATORY 
COMMITTEE held at 10.30 am on 16 June 2021 at Surrey County Council, 
Woodhatch Place, 11 Cockshot Hill, Reigate, Surrey, RH2 8EF. 
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its next 
meeting. 
 
Members Present: 
 
 Tim Hall (Chairman) 

Ernest Mallett MBE 
Penny Rivers 
Jeffrey Gray 
Jonathan Hulley 
Victor Lewanski 
David Lewis 
Scott Lewis 
Catherine Powell 
Richard Tear 
Jeremy Webster (Vice-Chairman) 
 

  
 

 
11/21 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  [Item 1] 

 
None received.  
 

12/21 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  [Item 2] 
 
The Minutes were APPROVED as an accurate record of the previous 
meeting. 
 

13/21 PETITIONS  [Item 3] 
 
There were none. 
 

14/21 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  [Item 4] 
 
There were none.  
 

15/21 MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME  [Item 5] 
 
Two questions were received from Mr Ernest Mallet. The questions and 
responses were published in a supplementary agenda on 15 June 2021.  
 

1. As a supplementary question to Question 1, Mr Mallet thanked officers 
for the response and asked whether paper copies of the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Minerals and Waste Policy documents 
could be made available to Members. Officers confirmed that a 
Members’ library of key documents would be available following the 
end of COVID-19 restrictions.  

2. As a supplementary question to Question 2, Mr Mallet stated that he 
was grateful for the progress and asked whether details around car 
parking and visitor access were included in the process. Officers 

Page 1

2

Item 2



 

confirmed that the draft management plan should be formally 
submitted in Summer 2021 and officers expected details on visitor 
access to be included.  

 
 

16/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  [Item 6] 
 
Catherine Powell declared a non-pecuniary interest for Items 7 & 8 as she 
had previously lived in the Seale and Sands Parish and had supported the 
Parish Council in the restoration of landfill and quarry sites. Catherine Powell 
further stated that she no longer lived in the area and was not personally 
affected by the Landfill.  
 

17/21 MINERALS/WASTE WA/2021/0004 - LAND AT HOMEFIELD SANDPIT, 
GUILDFORD ROAD, RUNFOLD, FARNHAM, SURREY GU10 1PG  [Item 7] 
 

The Chairman agreed to consider Item 7 and Item 8 under one item. 
 
Officers: 
Jessica Darvill, Planning Officer  
Caroline Smith, Interim Planning Group Manager  
Stephen Jenkins, Interim Planning Development Manager  
Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Lawyer 
Helen Forbes, Senior Solicitor 
Joss Butler, Committee Manager  
 
Speakers:  
 
None. 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Officers introduced the items and noted that Item 7 proposed the 
continued use of the workshop for use in repairing onsite plant, 
machinery and lorries without compliance with Conditions 1 and 2 of 
planning permission ref: WA11/0009 dated 7 April 2011 (as amended 
by planning application ref: WA/2020/1753 dated 11 December 2020) 
to extend the period of development. Furthermore, Members noted 
Item 8 proposed continued use of two storey extension to side of 
workshop to provide welfare facilities without compliance with 
Conditions 1 and 2 of planning permission ref: WA10/2109 dated 17 
February 2011 (as amended by planning application ref: 
WA/2020/1754 dated 14 December 2020) to extend the period of 
development. Members went on to note details related to the location 
and planning history of the site.  

2. A Member of the Committee stated that the original planning consent 
was granted on the basis that the facilities were ancillary and 
fundamental to the ongoing work of the site but there had been little 
evidence on site that this was the case. Further to this, The Member 
stated that there was some evidence that the inert waste recycling 
facility and the ancillary facilities were preventing and reversing the 
restoration which had already occurred. The Member then asked 
officers to undertake additional work to understand whether the 
facilities outlined were fundamental to the site’s restoration. Officers 
explained that officers had taken these points into account when 

Page 2

2



 

monitoring the site however the applications before committee were 
not concerning the restoration of the site. The Member went on to 
request that that a condition was in place to ensure the facilities 
outlined in the application were fundamental to the filling and 
restoration of the site. The officer stated that it was their opinion that 
the workshop was an appropriate facility to be had on site to ensure 
the maintenance of machinery was undertaken without causing further 
impact to the surrounding area.   

3. A Member asked whether officers were clear that the site was no 
longer used for sand extractions and waste recycling. Officers 
confirmed that they had visited the site for routine site monitoring and 
that there was evidence that the activities had ceased. There was 
however a Review of Old Mineral Permissions (ROMP) application in 
progress which would consider the restoration process and whether it 
could be completed in a shorted time period.  

4. A Member requested that a condition be included to ensure an annual 
report was created to detail what maintenance was undertaken in the 
facility and why it was essential to the restoration of the site. Officers 
confirmed that the conditions were already clear that the workshop 
would only be used in connection to activities on the site and for no 
other purpose.  

5. A Member stated that the local community had requested a 
Community Liaison Group (CLG) to allow detail of the monitoring of 
the site to be shared. Officers confirmed they would support a Liaison 
Group and would approach the site’s operator with the suggestion. 
Following discussion, Members agreed to include the following 
informative:  
The Planning and Regulatory Committee strongly recommend that the 
operator engage with the local community via a liaison group.  

6. Members noted that there were six total applications on the site for 
Members to consider.  

7. Members stated that they were concerned with the history of 
incompliance with planning rules on the site and asked whether 
Condition 3 could be strengthened to ensure the machinery was used 
only for landfilling and restoration. Officers stated that it would be 
unfair to the applicant to amend conditions without proper consultation.  

8. Members noted that the hours of operations outlined in Condition 5 
had been carried over from a previous application.  

 

Actions / further information to be provided:  

None.  

Resolved:  

The Committee agreed to PERMIT planning permission WA/2021/0004 
subject to the conditions from page 29 of the agenda.  
 

18/21 MINERALS/WASTE WA/2021/0005 - LAND AT HOMEFIELD SANDPIT, 
GUILDFORD ROAD, RUNFOLD, FARNHAM, SURREY GU10 1PG  [Item 8] 
 
Officers: 
Jessica Darvill, Planning Officer  
Caroline Smith, Interim Planning Group Manager  
Stephen Jenkins, Interim Planning Development Manager  
Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Lawyer  

Page 3

2



 

Helen Forbes, Senior Solicitor 
Joss Butler, Committee Manager  
 
Speakers:  
 
None. 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

Discussion was held under Item 7.  

 

Actions / further information to be provided:  

None.  

Resolved:  

It was agreed to PERMIT planning permission WA/2021/0005 subject to the 
conditions from page 63 of the agenda.  
 

19/21 WASTE MANAGEMENT APPLICATION REF. MO/2020/1804 - LAND AT 
ROLLS FARMHOUSE, PARTRIDGE LANE, NEWDIGATE, SURREY RH5 
5BW  [Item 9] 
 
Officers: 
Caroline Smith, Interim Planning Group Manager  
Stephen Jenkins, Interim Planning Development Manager  
Nancy El-Shatoury, Principal Lawyer  
Joss Butler, Committee Manager  
 
Speakers:  
 
None. 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Officers introduced that the application which was for the change of 
use of land, existing storage bays and existing building for the storage 
and sorting of green waste and erection of roof on the storage barn 
and retaining bund. Members noted details related to the history of the 
site which were outlined in the report.  

2. A Member asked whether applicants were supported to amend their 
refused application to allow for approval. Officers explained that the 
applicant may wish to amend the application during appeal to meet the 
very special circumstances.  

 

Actions / further information to be provided:  

None.  

Resolved:  

The Committee agreed to REFUSE planning application Ref. MO/2020/1804 
for the 
following reasons: 
 

Page 4

2



 

1. The proposed development does not comply with the locational criteria for 
waste management development as set out in Policies 2 and 10 of the Surrey 
Waste Plan 2019. 
 
2. The industrial nature and scale of the development would not preserve or 
enhance local landscape character or the visual amenities of the local 
landscape contrary to Policies 13 and 14 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2019, 
Policies ENV4, ENV22, and RUD19 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000, and 
Policies CS13 and CS15 of the Mole Valley Core Strategy 2009. 
 
3. The applicant has failed to demonstrate factors that amount to very special 
circumstances which clearly outweigh harm to the Green Belt and other 
identified harm to the local landscape character and visual amenities of the 
rural countryside contrary to Policy 9 of the Surrey Waste Plan 2019 and 
Policy RUD19 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000. 
 

20/21 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 10] 
 
The date of the next meeting was noted as 7 July 2021.  
 
 
 
 
Meeting closed at 11.25 am 
 _________________________ 
 Chairman 

Page 5

2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

2



 

 

To: Planning & Regulatory Committee Date: 8 September 2021 

By: Planning Development Manager  

District(s) Mole Valley District Council  Electoral Division(s): 
  Ashtead 
  Mr Townsend 

  Case Officer: 

  Stephanie King 

Purpose: For Decision Grid Ref: 517527 157203 

Title: Surrey County Council Proposal MO/2021/1087  

Summary Report 

St Andrews RC School, Grange Road, Leatherhead Surrey KT22 7JP 

Permanent one form of entry expansion comprising two storey extension to the existing 
Earl Building to provide additional teaching and supporting accommodation; demolition 
of existing ‘Woodlands Building’ and erection of a replacement two storey standalone 
block comprising teaching and supporting accommodation; permanent retention of two 
demountable classroom units; modification of existing Main Building and Performing 
Arts Building elevations to provide new external windows and doors to suit altered 
internal layout and ventilation strategy; and associated external works and landscaping. 

The recommendation is PERMIT subject to conditions. 

Application details 

Applicant 

SCC Property 

Date application valid 

19 May 2021 

Period for Determination 

20 September 2021 

Amending Documents 

Acoustic Design Report 20/0474/R1 dated 18 August 2021 

Summary of Planning Issues 

This section identifies and summarises the main planning issues in the report. The full text 
should be considered before the meeting. 

 Is this aspect of the  Paragraphs in the  
 proposal in accordance  report where this  
 with the development plan? has been discussed 

Need for Community Facilities Yes 44 - 55 

Page 7

7

Item 7



Sustainable Design, Scale and Landscaping Yes  56 - 82 

Ecology, Trees and Archaeology Yes  83 - 110 

Impact on Residential Amenity  Yes  111 - 127 

Drainage and Flood Risk  Yes  128 - 139 

Impact to Playing Fields  Yes  140 - 149 

Highways, Traffic and Access  Yes  150 - 186 

Metropolitan Green Belt  Yes 187 - 204 

Illustrative material 

Site Plan 

Site plan 1: Site location plan and application site area 

Aerial Photographs 

Aerial 1: Site location adjacent to the M25 

Aerial 2: Main school site and application red line boundary 

Aerial 3: School site including planning fields to the north of the main school site 

Application Plans 

Plan 1: Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1102 Rev P2 Proposed Block Plan dated 5 May 
2021 (Proposed development locations within the main school site). 

Plan 2: Drawing number: HBS-EB-ZZ-DR-A-1122 Rev P2 Existing and Proposed Elevations 
Sheet 1 dated 10 May 2021 (Earl Building extension) 

Plan 3: Drawing number: HBS-EB-ZZ-DR-A-1121 Rev P1 Existing and Proposed Elevations 
Sheet 2 dated 5 May 2021 (Woodlands Building and new classroom block) 

Plan 4: Drawing number: HBS-ZZ-XX-DR-A-1123 Rev P0 Existing Demountable Elevations 

Site Photographs 

Figure 1: Woodlands Building 

Figure 2: Proposed new classroom block location 

Figure 3: View looking north to Earl Building and proposed Earl Building extension location to 
the left of Earl Building, with the two demountable units on the right side of figure 

Figure 4: View looking north along Grange Road with St Andrews School and site entrance on 
the left side of the figure. 

Figure 5: View looking south along Grange Road with north east corner of St Andrews School 
site on the right side of the figure. 

Background 

Site Description 

1. St Andrew’s Roman Catholic (RC) School occupies a 3.22 hectares (ha) site within a 
largely residential area, north east of Leatherhead and west of Ashtead. The School site 

Page 8

7



is bordered by the M25 to the west and Public Footpath 52 (Linden Pit Path) to the north. 
St Andrew’s RC School is on the south-western side of Grange Road. The main entrance 
to the School is sited at the northern end of Grange Road at the corner where the road 
meets Ottways Lane. St Andrew’s RC School is one of three schools in the immediate 
area with St Peter’s Roman Catholic Primary School to the north separated by Linden Pit 
Path (also within the Green Belt), and Downsend School to the south. 

 
2. St Andrew’s RC School is a 7 Form of Entry (7FE) school with a 250 place 6th Form, 

however due to a number of bulge classes, the school effectively is an 8FE (1200 pupils) 
with a 250 place 6th Form. The School caters for children aged from 11 to 18 years old. 

 
3. The existing school buildings are predominately two storey with a mixture of pitched, 

curved and flat roofs. The external walls are typically smooth grey and textured cream 
brickwork or blockwork with a mixture of white, blue and dark grey external windows and 
doors. The main school site also has a small playing field adjacent to the south west 
boundary, however, the school’s main playing field is off-site accessed via a short walk to 
the north west. 

 
4. The School is positioned at the edge of the Green Belt with this encompassing the 

school and land to the north, south and west, but not Grange Road and land to the east. 
The site is located within Food Zone 1 and is adjacent to an Area of High Archaeological 
Potential. 

Planning History 

5. MO/98/0640 Single story extension following demolition of timber extension (permitted 
17 June 1998). 

6. MO/01/1493 New garage block (permitted 26 November 2011). 

7. MO/02/0240 Erection of two temporary single storey double classroom blocks (permitted 
4 July 2002). 

8. MO/2003/0447 Erection of new temporary teaching block (part revision of MO/02/0240) 
(permitted 9 May 2003). 

9. MO/2003/0470 Replacement temporary exam hut (permitted 9 May 2003). 

10. MO/2005/1285 Detached part single and two storey building to provide classrooms 
dining room, chapel and other school facilities, and, detached sports hall building with 
ancillary changing, shower and other facilities and car parking, and, coach and car drop 
off area following demolition of existing buildings (permitted 24 May 2007). 

11. MO/2005/2053 Extension to existing design technologies department (permitted 3 
February 2006). 

12. MO/2006/0511 Relocation of existing prefabricated modular building and erection of new 
prefabricated modular building for a temporary period of five years (permitted 19 May 
2006). 

13. MO/2008/0913 Tree Works (permitted 25 July 2008). 

14. MO/2009/0752 Removal of 1 No. Lime tree (T1 on submitted plan (permitted 20 August 
2009). 

15. MO/2015/0897 Erect first floor extension to provide new classroom and office space 
(permitted 5 August 2015). 

Page 9

7



16. MO/2015/0897/1 Non-material amendment to allow all windows to be lower in height 
(permitted 4 November 2015). 

17. MO/2018/2006 Replacement and renewal to existing flat roof areas of Gymnasium Block, 
and renewal of cladding areas to rear and side. Replacement windows and provision of 
an extended ramp and risen pathway to rear of block to improve access (permitted 31 
January 2019). 

18. MO/2020/1250 Erection of two storey extension to provide toilet and archive store 
facilities (permitted 17 September 2020). 

The proposal 

19. The proposal is for a permanent 1 Form Of Entry (1FE) expansion from 7FE school 
(1050 pupils) with a 250 place 6th Form to an 8FE (1200 pupils) with a 250 place 6th 
Form. The applicant explains that due to a number of bulge classes the school is 
currently operating as an 8FE school. Pupil forecasts suggest that the demand for school 
places will be sustained in the long term, therefore the school is seeking to permanently 
expand to an 8FE and 250 place 6th Form to accommodate the demand. To support the 
permanent 1FE expansion, the proposal details a permanent, additional 7 full time 
employees. No additional vehicle parking is proposed. 

 
20. To facilitate the permanent 1FE expansion, the proposal comprises a two storey 

extension to the existing Earl Building to provide additional teaching and supporting 
accommodation, demolition of existing ‘Woodlands Building’ and erection of a 
replacement two storey standalone block comprising teaching and supporting 
accommodation, and the permanent retention of two demountable classroom units. 

 
21. The existing Earl Building is proposed to be extended from the south west end of the 

building. The proposed extension location would occupy approximately 171.8 metres 
squared (m2) of the current playing field, therefore the applicant has submitted a Pitch 
Assessment to accompany the application. The proposed extension will be finished in 
the same materials as the existing building, flat built-up felt roof, buff and gold facing 
brickwork, and steel blue windows and doors. The existing 2 metres (m) high welded 
mesh fence is proposed to be extended to accompany the enlarged building footprint, 
with new soft and hard landscaping to match the existing Earl building surroundings. 2m 
high timber hit and miss fencing and gates are also proposed to compound the Earl 
Building air source heat pump. The proposed extension will provide seven English 
classrooms to replace those reconfigured into IT classrooms in the main school building, 
two 6th Form seminar rooms, pupil WC, stores, a History Office to replace one 
reconfigured into circulation for the Earl building extension, an English Office to replace 
one reconfigured into a Specialist Science Laboratory in the main school building, and 
circulation and stairwell including a platform lift. 

 
22. The existing Woodlands Building is proposed to be demolished and replaced with a two 

storey standalone block. The proposed block will cover a slightly larger area than the 
existing Woodlands building and will also be taller than the existing Woodlands building. 
The proposed replacement building will be finished with blue-grey cladding and oatmeal 
coloured masonry. The windows and doors are proposed to be finished in anthracite grey 
and the roof is proposed to be pitched and finished with zinc standing seam cladding. 
The replacement building is proposed to include two Food rooms and associated Food 
Prep and store rooms, Drama Studio and associated Drama store, Drama Office, three 
ICT classrooms and associated store, one ICT/business studies classroom, one female, 
one male and two accessible WCs, and circulation and stairwell including a platform lift. 

 
23. Two demountable classroom units located to the south east of the Earl Building are 

proposed to be permanently retained as part of this application. Each unit contains two 
classrooms making a total of 4 classrooms to be retained. 

 

Page 10

7



24. In addition, this proposal comprises the modification of the existing Main Building, 
Performing Arts Building and DT Block to provide new external windows and doors to 
facilitate level access, local grading, ramps/stairs where required, an altered internal 
layout to provide additional teaching accommodation, and a new ventilation strategy. 

Consultations and publicity 

District Council 

25. Mole Valley District Council No objection and provide advice regarding relevant 
policies and careful consideration of very special 
circumstances weighed against the harm to Green Belt. 

Consultees (Statutory and Non-Statutory) 

26. County Arboriculturist No objection, subject to a condition securing the 
implementation of the details set out in the 
Arboriculture Method Statement. 

27. County Archaeological Officer  No objection. 

28. County Ecologist No objection, subject to condition securing the 
implementation of the proposed enhancements and 
mitigation measures set out in the Preliminary 
Ecological Assessment.  

29. County Landscape Officer No objection, recommends inclusion of standard 
biosecurity informative. 

30. County Noise Consultant No objection, subject to condition securing noise limits 
for the site. 

31. County Highway Authority No objection, subject to two conditions securing the 
implementation of the submitted Construction Transport 
Management Plan and the submission of an updated 
school travel plan prior to the first occupation of the 
development. Also recommends inclusion of four 
highways and school travel plan informatives. 

32. Lead Local Flood Authority No objection, subject to two conditions requiring the 
submission and approval of a detailed surface water 
drainage scheme prior to the commencement of 
development and of a verification report prior to first 
occupation of the development. 

33. Sport England No objection, as proposal meets exception E3 of the 
Sport England Playing Fields Policy. 

34. Sutton and East Surrey Water  No views received. 

35. Thames Water No objection, recommends inclusion of surface water, 
groundwater, public sewer and petrol/oil interceptors 
informatives. 

Parish/Town Council and Amenity Groups 

36. No parish councils, town councils or residential amenity groups were identified within the 
local area of the application site. 

Page 11

7



Summary of publicity undertaken and key issues raised by public 

37. The application was publicised by the posting of 6 site notices and an advert was placed 
in the Surrey Mirror. A total of 95 of owner/occupiers of neighbouring properties were 
directly notified by letter. 

38. To date, five letters and one petition with twenty signatures was received objecting to the 
proposed development. The main concerns and reasons for objecting are: 

 Grange Road and surrounding roads have long-standing parking and traffic problems 
which is intensified by the proximity of Downsend and St Peters Schools located 
adjacent to St Andrews School. These existing highways, traffic and access problems 
will be exacerbated by the proposed 1FE expansion. 

 Existing parking issues include parking on both sides of the road, across double yellow 
lines, dropped curves and pavements. This poor parking creates one lane for highway 
traffic leading to a build-up in vehicles, congestion and aggressive driving due to 
frustration, which will be worsened by an increase in pupils. Existing traffic and parking 
calming measures including double yellow lines on part of Ottways Lane and Grange 
Road are not enforced. 

 Existing parking issues prevent residential access to driveways and homes every school 
day at pick up and drop off times and prevents pedestrian use of the pavements. Parking 
along Grange Road also inhibits sight lines when turning into residential driveways and 
closes creating a safety risk to highway uses. This will be worsened by an increase in 
pupils. 

 Existing parking and traffic issues present a life threatening safety risk to highway users, 
pupils, pedestrians and residents. Multiple near misses have been witnesses with 
students on bicycles pulling out into oncoming traffic. Existing parking and traffic issues 
inhibits emergency services access through and to nearby residential properties which 
poses a potentially life threatening safety risk. Appropriate conditions are needed to 
ensure existing safety issues for children and locals are not worsened but mitigated. 

 As the schools along Grange Road do not use distance in their selection criteria of 
pupils, any expansion in capacity inevitably brings more traffic to an already congested 
road as pupils from further afield will travel to school by car. However, the proposal does 
not include any additional parking. 

 Travel by car is not a sustainable mode of transport and increases congestion and 
pollution to the local area which is already impacted by congestion and the M25. 

 The Travel plan is based on 2011 census data which is outdated and does not represent 
a relevant baseline against which the proposed impact of the 1FE expansion should be 
considered. St Andrews RC School and neighbouring schools have increased their 
capacity since 2011 and therefore does not reflect the local changes. An up-to-date 
traffic assessment is required to assess highway impacts and mitigation measures. 

 The roads to the south of Ashtead, known as the ‘The Lanes’ (the old pony and trap 
roads) are not designed for the current scale of traffic, and therefore cannot 
accommodate an increase in traffic as a result of the proposed school expansion. 

 Double yellow lines need to be extended to and included at the Grangemount T-
Junction. Double Yellow lines need to added on Grangemount especially at the junction 
to prevent parking close to the junction. Cars currently park a couple of metres along the 
road making entering and exiting impossible. 

 An In/Out road should be built at the rear of the School buildings and joined to existing 
entry and exit gates so all the children can be dropped-off in the site compound. 

Page 12

7



 The proposal lacks details on construction timeframes and noise and traffic construction 
impacts on local residents. Further details are required to demonstrate consideration of 
construction impacts and suitable mitigation measures. Concerned about level of 
construction impact disturbance. 

 Blades Close is being used as an overflow parking area by parents and teachers as 
evidenced by the same cars parked all day. Blades Close road surface has significantly 
deteriorated and the main reason for this is the amount of external traffic using it, 
creating yet more new pot-holes. Previously repaired within the last 2 years. 

 The increased traffic will increase air pollution arising from vehicles negatively impacting 
local residents and the local environment. 

 The proposed expansion is likely to increase the number of incidents of anti-social 
behaviour, including smoking, littering and graffiti outside and on residential fences and 
hedges. 

 The trees on Grangemount need pruning annually, which has not happened for many 
years. 

 Concerned that proposed development will make way for further FE expansions and 
increase in pupil numbers. 

 Lack of responsibility being taken on the ongoing traffic and parking issues. 

39. Officers recognise local concerns with the proposed development and have addressed 
them within the relevant sections of the report.  

 

Planning considerations 

Introduction  

40. The guidance on the determination of planning applications contained in the 
Preamble/Agenda frontsheet is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read 
in conjunction with the following paragraphs.  

41. In this case the statutory development plan for consideration of the application consists 
of the Mole Valley Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009, the saved 
policies contained within the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000, and Ashtead Neighbourhood 
Development Plan 2017. 

42. Mole Valley District Council is preparing a new Local Plan, but as this is at an early stage 
of preparation, the emerging Local Plan policy does not carry any weight in the planning 
balance and therefore is not a material planning consideration. 

43. In considering this application the acceptability of the proposed development will be 
assessed against relevant development plan policies and material considerations. In 
assessing the application against development plan policy it will be necessary to 
determine whether the proposed measures for mitigating any environmental impact of 
the development are satisfactory.  In this case the main planning considerations are: 
Need for Community Facilities; Sustainable Design, Scale and Landscaping; Ecology, 
Trees and Archaeology; Impact on Residential Amenity; Drainage and Flood Risk; 
Impact on Playing Fields; Highways, Transport and Access; and Metropolitan Green Belt. 

NEED FOR COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Mole Valley Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009 (MVCS 2009) 

Page 13

7



Policy CS17 - Infrastructure, Services and Community Facilities 
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 Saved Policies (MVLP 2000) 
Policy CF2 - Provision of New Community Facilities 

Policy 

44. MVCS 2009 Policy CS17 resists the loss of key services and facilities (including 
community facilities), unless an appropriate alternative is provided or, evidence is 
presented that the facility is no longer required and suitable alternative uses have been 
considered. This will require the developer to provide evidence that they have consulted 
with an appropriate range of service providers and the community where relevant. 

45. MVLP 2000 Policy CF2 supports the development, expansion or change of use of 
premises for community facilities in the District's built-up areas provided that the 
development is required to meet the needs of the locality which cannot be met through 
the use of existing community premises. 

Need 
 
46. The applicant has submitted an Education Need Statement contained within the Planning 

Statement to establish the need for the proposed development. The Educational Need 
Statement explains that while St Andrews School increased their published admission 
number (PAN) in 2017 to reflect the increase in Catholic demand for places, the school 
still has had to repeatedly admit above PAN to meet demands. This has resulted in a 
rolling increase in total number of pupils from 934 in 2013 to 1457 in 2020. 

 
47. The pupil projections for the Leatherhead secondary place planning area forecast a 

sustained demand of over 700 pupils. The increase in demand is in part due to an 
increase in housing in Mole Valley District but mostly due to an increase in cohorts 
moving from primary to secondary in Leatherhead and beyond the district border, namely 
in Epsom, Ashtead, Banstead, Dorking, Effingham, Fetcham, Ewell, Leatherhead, 
Tadworth and more recently Cobham. 

 
48. The Education Need Statement highlights that St Peter’s Catholic Primary School had a 

1FE expansion in 2014 to meet the increase in Catholic demand for places and that as a 
direct feeder school to St Andrew’s School, the additional pupils from St Peter’s School 
will be expected to feed into St Andrews. There will be no bulge classes from September 
2021. 

 
49. Furthermore, the Education Need Statement explains that Surrey County Council’s 

strategy is to expand high quality provision that meets demand, whilst also ensuring that 
there is a diverse pattern of provision to provide families with some element of choice. St 
Andrew’s Catholic Secondary School is the only Catholic school in the district of Mole 
Valley and provides Catholic education for the wider Catholic deanery which is part of the 
Diocese of Arundel and Brighton. The school was rated ‘Outstanding’ in the last Ofsted 
inspection in December 2012, and therefore the Education Need Statement explains that 
a proposed expansion will maintain the diversity of places and balance between faith and 
non-faith places in the district of Mole Valley. 

 
50. Despite the previous PAN increase, there has been no physical expansion of the school 

premises. As a result, the Education Need Statement explains that the school was 
unable to continue to offer additional bulge class in 2020 to meet Catholic demand due to 
the physical limitations of its current accommodation. 

 
51. In view of the projected long term demand for places, the proposed development has 

been devised through an assessment of internal and external areas. This assessment 
has identified the need for additional floor area to provide sufficient teaching and 
supporting facilities to accommodate a permanent 1FE increase. The additional teaching 

Page 14

7



space is proposed to be provided by the permanent retention of two demountable 
classroom units, the demolition of the Woodlands Building and redevelopment of the 
same area through a new building, extension of the Earl Building and internal 
refurbishment. The Planning Statement is clear that SCC school undertook a public 
consultation on the proposal, enabling parents, neighbours and staff to discuss and 
comment on the proposed development. 

 
52. Mole Valley District Council raises no objection on the need for the proposed 

development. 

53. Officers consider that the Educational Need Statement sufficiently identifies a need for 
the proposed 1FE expansion as there is an existing and projected demand for Catholic 
places at the school site and in the wider locality. As the only Catholic secondary school 
in Mole Valley District, St Andrews School is the only school which can accommodate 
the long term Catholic demand for places in the locality. Therefore, Officers are satisfied 
that the proposed development accords Policy CF2 of the MVLP 2000 in this regard. 

 
54. In addition, Officers recognise that the 1FE expansion cannot be reasonably located at 

another school as the additional 150 pupils are already at the school site due to a 
number of bulge classes. Furthermore, Officers are satisfied that there is an identified 
need to expand the school site to provide sufficient space for the increase in pupils 
numbers and consider that the permanent 1FE expansion cannot be adequately 
accommodated within the existing infrastructure on site. Officers are therefore satisfied 
that the proposed development meets the requirements of Policy CF2 of the MVLP 2000. 

55. Moreover, Officers are satisfied that the submitted Planning Statement sufficiently 
demonstrates that the loss of the Woodlands Building will allow for more efficient use of 
the school land to provide sufficient and updated teaching facilities through the 
redevelopment of the land with a new building, and therefore accords with Policy CS17 
of the MVCS 2009 in this regard. Officers consider that the schools public consultation of 
the proposed development also meets the requirements of Policy CS17 of the MVCS 
2009 to provide evidence that they have consulted with an appropriate range of service 
providers and the community where relevant. 

 

SUSTAINABLE DESIGN, SCALE AND LANDSCAPING  

Mole Valley Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009 (MVCS 2009) 

Policy CS14 - Townscape, Urban Design and the Historic Environment  
Policy CS19 - Sustainable Construction, Renewable Energy and Energy Conservation 
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 (MVLP 2000) 

Policy ENV4 - Landscape Character  
Policy ENV22 - General Development Control Criteria  
Policy ENV23 - Respect for Setting  
Policy ENV24 - Density of Development and The Space About Buildings 
Policy ENV25 - Landscape Design of New Developments 
Policy ENV30 - Access for Disabled People to Non-Domestic Buildings and their Sites 
Policy CF2 - Provision of New Community Facilities 
Ashtead Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 (ANDP 2017) 

Policy AS-En3 - Retaining Character 
Policy AS-Inf3 - Valued Community Facilities 
 
Policy  
 
56. MVCS 2009 Policy CS14 resists development of a poor design quality and requires all 

new development to respect and enhance local character and incorporate appropriate 
landscaping with particular attention to the use of trees and hedges native to the locality. 
MVCS 2009 Policy CS19 requires new buildings and the redevelopment and 

Page 15

7



refurbishment of the existing building stock to minimise energy use through design, 
layout and orientation while also maximising on-site recycling facilities, and the re-use 
and recycling of materials used in construction. In addition, new and redeveloped 
buildings must meet BREEAM 'Very Good' construction standards as a minimum and 
include a 10% reduction in total carbon emissions through the on-site installation and 
implementation of decentralised and renewable or low-carbon energy sources. 
Furthermore, Policy CS19 requires applicants to demonstrate how these requirements 
have been met unless it can be demonstrated that compliance is not technically or 
financially achievable having regard to the type of development involved and its design. 

 
57. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV4 seeks to ensure that development proposals do not detract 

from the character of the local landscape and account should be taken of the visual 
impact of the proposed development on the landscape with careful consideration of the 
siting, design, colour and associated planting. 

 
58. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV22 requires the design and layout of development to satisfy 

several criteria including being appropriate to the site in terms of its scale, form and 
appearance and external building materials; and respecting the character and 
appearance of the locality. Respect for the setting of development is also echoed in 
MVLP 2000 Policies ENV23 and ENV24, which require development proposals to take 
account of the scale, character, bulk, proportions and materials of the surrounding built 
environment. Development will not be permitted where it is considered it would constitute 
over-development of the site by reason of scale, height or bulk or in relation to the 
boundaries of the site and/or surrounding developments. 

59. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV25 requires particular care to been taken in the provision, use 
and design of spaces between buildings and that the hard and soft landscape design is 
suitable for the site and form of development. Furthermore, MVLP 2000 Policy CF2 
requires that proposals for community facilities should not detract from the character and 
appearance of the property and surrounding area, and the scale of the development is 
appropriate to the needs of the local community. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV30 requires 
educational buildings to provide suitable access for people with disabilities, and where 
practicable and reasonable, this should apply to the change of use or external alteration 
to a building. 

60. ANDP 2017 Policy AS-En3 requires all developments to be visually integrated with their 
surroundings and designed with regard to the character of the surrounding area. ANDP 
2017 Policy AS-Inf3 is clear that the expansion or improvement of community facilities to 
meet local demand will be supported, provided their design and scale is compatible with 
the character and amenities of the location. 

Design, scale and layout 

61. The submitted Design and Access Statement details that the existing school buildings 
vary in scale and age. The Sports Hall and Art Building are the tallest buildings on site, 
the latter of which measures 9.6m in total height. As the existing buildings have been 
extended over the schools lifetime, each part of the school has a slightly different but 
harmonious material palette. The majority of the existing school buildings are two storey 
with a mix of flat felt roofs, pitched zinc roofs and curved standing seam roofs. The 
external finishings are predominately buff facing brickwork or block in grey with windows 
and doors in white, blue and dark grey. The existing modular buildings with textured 
external wall finishings are coloured cream and those with smooth external walls are 
finished in grey. 

62. The Design and Access Statement is clear the existing building scale and finishings were 
carefully considered as part of the form and design of the proposed development to 
ensure an enhancing quality and congruous appearance of the existing site and 
surrounding amenity. 

Page 16

7



63. The existing and proposed scale and design of the Earl Building and the building 
extension is illustrated on drawing number: HBS-EB-ZZ-DR-A-1120 Rev P2 Existing and 
Proposed Elevations Sheet 1 dated 10 May 2021. The existing Earl Building measures 
19.1m in length, 18.4m in width and 7m in height, and is located in the North West corner 
of the main school site. The proposed Earl Building extension will increase the length of 
the building by 22m (from 19.1m to 41.1m in total length), while the existing width and 
height would remain the same. The Earl Building extension is proposed to be located off 
the western end of the existing Earl Building. Officers consider that the proposed 
dimensions of the Earl building extension and the replacement building have been 
designed to be of appropriate bulking, mass and scale and therefore is congruent with 
the scale of the existing school site. Officers also consider that the proposed Earl 
building extension is appropriately sited at the western end of the existing Earl building 
and to the rear of the schools property so that it does not result in any adverse visual 
impact in accordance with development plan policies CF2, ENV4, ENV22, ENV23 and 
ENV24 of the MVLP 2000 and Policy AS-En3 of the ANDP 2017. 

64. As detailed in paragraph 21 above, the two-storey Earl Building extension will be finished 
in Ibstock Bristol Gold colour buff facing brickwork, and PPC aluminium blue external 
windows and doors. Similarly, the hoppers and downpipes are proposed to be PPC 
aluminium coloured Jet Black. The roof will be flat and finished in built-up felt. Officers 
are satisfied that proposed external material and colour finishings have been selected to 
match the existing Earl Building and therefore will be in keeping with the existing design 
and character of the school site in accordance with development plan policies CF2, 
ENV4, ENV22, ENV23 and ENV24 of the MVLP 2000. 

65. The dimensions of the existing Woodlands Building and the proposed design and scale 
of the replacement building are illustrated on drawing number: HBS-NB-ZZ-DR-A-1121 
Rev P1 Existing and Proposed Elevations Sheet 2 dated 5 May 2021. The Woodlands 
Building is located between the existing single-storey DT Block and double-heights 
Sports Hall. The Woodlands Building measures 26m in length, 9.7m in width and 2.6m, 
and had a total floorspace of 252.2m2. The Woodlands Building is proposed to be 
demolished to make space for a new classroom block. 

66. The new classroom block is proposed to be a two storey building with a pitched roof, 
located at the site of the to be demolished Woodlands Building. The new classroom 
block is proposed to be 29.4m in length, 17.2m in width and 8.3m in height and with a 
floorspace of 505.68m2. This represents an approximate doubling in floorspace due to 
the 3.4m increase in length and 7.5m increase in width. The external steel framed 
escape stair and satin stainless steel steps add an additional 1.3m to the length and 
width of the replacement building. Officers note that new classroom block is a sizeable 
increase to the existing Woodlands Building but recognise that there is a need for 
additional classroom space to accommodate the permanent 1FE and will provide 
updated and improved teaching facilities that cannot be as efficiently achieved by 
extending the existing Woodlands Building. Officers consider that the proposed siting of 
the new classroom block at the same location as the to be demolished Woodlands 
Building is an efficient use of land and is an appropriate siting for a new building within 
the existing fabric and main area of the existing school site. 

67. In addition, Officers consider that the proposed scale and massing of the new classroom 
block to be in keeping with the largely two-storey existing school buildings and wider 
locality. Furthermore, given the position of the new classroom block adjacent to the 
larger Sports Hall and to the rear of the school site, Officers are satisfied that the 
proposed building will not result in any significantly adverse impacts on visual amenity 
and will be in keeping with the existing school site in accordance with development plan 
policies CF2, ENV4, ENV22, ENV23 and ENV24 of the MVLP 2000 and Policy AS-En3 
of the ANDP 2017. 

Page 17

7



68. The new classroom block is proposed to be externally finished in cream coloured facing 
masonry at the ground floor and pre-weathered blue-grey vertical angle standing seam 
zinc cladding at the first floor. External doors and windows are proposed to be anthracite 
grey PPC aluminium and the roof will be pitched with weatherproof ventilation cowls, a 
soil vent pipe and a passive ventilation roof terminal. The main entrance will be covered 
by a canopy. Officers consider that the proposed design and external material and colour 
finishings to be in keeping with the harmonious material palette of the existing school 
buildings. Officers consider that the use of similar colours will allow the new buildings to 
blend into the existing landscape of the school and will not have an adverse impact on 
visual amenity. Therefore, Officers are satisfied that the new classroom block will be in 
keeping with the existing school site and will be a neutral contribution to the wider local 
character in accordance with development plan policies CF2, ENV4, ENV22, ENV23 and 
ENV24 of the MVLP 2000. 

69. The Earl Building extension and new classroom block are proposed to be powered by air 
source heat pumps (ASHP). Both buildings will have an ASHP contained within a 
compound. The Earl Building ASHP compound will be located at the western end of the 
building and measuring approximately 1.9m in length and 3.2m in width. The new 
classroom block ASHP compound will be located at northern end of the new building and 
will approximately measure 1.5m in length by 3m in width. Each compound will be 
surrounded by 2m high Hit and Miss timber fencing. Officers support the include of ASHP 
as a sustainable energy source and consider the proposed ASHP compounds and 
fencing to be suitable and in keeping with the wider site, and therefore are satisfied that 
the ASHP compounds accord with development plan policy CS19 of the MVCS 2009 and 
policy ENV22 of the MVLP 2000 in this regard. 

70. The two modular classroom units are located to rear of the site, to the north of the Sport 
Hall, east of the soft amenity grass play area, south of the Earl Building, and east of the 
hard-surfaced play area. One unit is finished in grey colour and the other in an oatmeal 
colour. Both have flat roofs and external doors and windows finished in white. Both units 
are the same scale and measure approximately length of 16m. Including the access 
stairs at either of the unit, the total length is approximately 21m. Each unit is 
approximately 3.4m in height and has a unit width of 8.7m, 12m total width including 
stairs. Officers consider that the scale of the classroom units to be in keeping with the 
wider school site and are satisfied that their location to the rear of the site ensures the 
units do not have an adverse impact on visual amenity. Officers are satisfied that the 
finishing colours and design are in keeping with the sites existing material palette. 
Officers are satisfied that the modular units scale, design and location to be congruous 
with the wider local character and will not result in any adverse impact on visual amenity, 
and therefore accord with development plan policies CF2, ENV4, ENV22, ENV23 and 
ENV24 of the MVLP 2000. 

71. Officers note that residents have raised concerns the proposal will possibly increase the 
anti-social behaviour in the area. Officers do not consider that nature of the development 
is undesirable or out of keeping with the local environment, nor is the design of the 
proposal one that encourages or facilities anti-social behaviour. Officers consider that 
these is no evidence to support that the proposal will result in an increase in anti-social 
behaviour. 

Existing buildings alterations 

72. The proposed development also includes modifications to the elevations of the existing 
Main Building and Arts Building to facilitate the proposed internal reconfiguration, 
ventilation strategy and provide level thresholds and ramps. Officers consider that the 
proposed changes to existing buildings’ access is appropriate and are satisfied that it will 
ensure suitable access for people with disabilities to educational buildings as required by 
development plan policy ENV30 of the MVLP 2000. 

Page 18

7



Sustainability 

73. In addition, a Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method 
(BREEAM) report has been submitted which sets out that the proposed development 
could achieve a BREEAM Very Good rating. Officers are satisfied that the BREEAM 
report includes a robust assessment of the sustainability of the proposed development 
and that the BREEAM Very Good rating is achievable, and therefore meets the 
requirements of development plan policy CS19 of the MVCS 2009 in this regard. 

74. Furthermore, the Sustainable Design and Construction Statement sets out the 
sustainable benefits from demolition and new build rather than refurbishment and 
building extension rather than new build. The Design and Access Statement and 
Sustainable Design and Construction Statement are also clear that a high standard of 
energy efficiency and conservation has been incorporated into the design of the 
proposed developed through external wall glazing, even distribution of natural light, 
thermally-glazed windows and doors, low-water use scheme and new ventilation 
scheme. Moreover, the Earl Building extension and new replacement building will be 
heated by Air Source Heat Pumps (ASHP), which afford a sustainable energy source.  
Officers consider that the proposed design, layout and orientation of the new building 
and building extension maximises their energy efficiency in accordance with 
development plan policy CS19 of the MVCS 2009. 

75. In terms of sustainable waste management, the BREEAM report is clear that the 
development contractor will undertake a pre-demolition audit to identify which material 
can be re-used or recycled from the existing Woodlands Building prior to demolition. The 
development contractor will also be responsible for producing a Resource Management 
plan to ensure construction waste resource efficiency and diversion from landfill. For 
school derived waste, a suitably sized bin store will be incorporated on site along with a 
dedicated space for waste segregation and storage. Officers consider that the proposed 
construction and school derived waste management is sustainable and will maximise on-
site recycling facilities and the re-use and recycling of materials used in construction is in 
accordance with development plan policy CS19 of the MVCS 2009. 

Landscaping 

76. Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1105 Rev P0 Proposed Landscaping Plan illustrates 
the proposed hard and soft landscaping associated with the proposed development. This 
includes the extension of existing concrete paving, new fencing and new shrub planting 
around the Earl Building extension, the combination of concrete paving and tarmacadam 
around the new replacement building, and tarmacadam for existing building elevation 
regrading. A hedge is also proposed between the Earl Building extension south eastern 
paving and the southern site area of amenity grass and an ornamental planting schedule 
is included on the Proposed Landscaping Plan. 

77. County Landscape Officer raises no objection to the proposed development and 
recommends the inclusion of a standard biosecurity informative. 

78. Officers consider the proposed hard and soft landscaping plan to be in keeping with the 
existing design of the school site and will provide characterful enhancement to the site 
in accordance with development plan Policy CS14 of the MVCS 2009 and Policy 
ENV25 of the MVLP 2000. 

Conclusion 

79. Mole Valley District Council and the County Landscape Officer raise no objection to the 
sustainable design, scale and landscaping of the proposed development. 

Page 19

7



80. Officers consider that the proposed development is an appropriate scale, which is in 
keeping with the existing school site as it will not exceed the existing height of the school 
site and matches the predominately two-storey built up area of the site. Officers are 
therefore satisfied that the scale of the proposed development accords with development 
plan policy CS19 of the MVCS 2009 and policies CF2, ENV4, ENV22, ENV23 and 
ENV24 of the MVLP 2000 and Policy AS-En3 of the ANDP 2017. 

81. Officers are satisfied that the proposed development design will be of sustainable, high 
quality and in keeping with the existing design of the school site as the finishing materials 
and colours are the same as the buildings finishings of the existing school buildings and 
the proposed development can achieve a BREEAM Very Good rating. Therefore, 
Officers consider that the proposed design is congruent with the existing school site and 
will integrate well with the local character of the site and the surrounding landscape in 
accordance with development plan policies CF2, ENV4, ENV22, ENV23 and ENV24 of 
the MVLP 2000. 

82. Officers consider that the proposed design of the new development will support the 
educational use of the site and will therefore be in keeping with the existing school use 
and will also respect and integrate with the existing local character and surroundings. 
Officers are satisfied that the proposed hard and soft landscaping scheme will enhance 
the proposed development on the site in accordance with development plan policies 
CF2, ENV22 and ENV25 of the MVLP 2000 and Policy AS-En3 of the ANDP 2017. 

Ecology, Trees and Archaeology 

Mole Valley Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009 (MVCS 2009) 

Policy CS15 - Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 (MVLP 2000) 
Policy ENV14 - Enhancement, Management and Creation of Nature Conservation Features 
Policy ENV25 - Landscape Design of New Developments 
Policy ENV49 - Areas of High Archaeological Potential 
Policy ENV53 - Trees in the Built-Up Areas 
Ashtead Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 (ANDP 2017) 

Policy AS-En2 - Amenity Space 

 
Policy 
 

83. MVCS 2009 Policy CS15 seeks to protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with 
European and National legislation/guidance and seeks to retain all trees within 
development sites where practicable. Policy CS15 is clear that planting and other 
schemes that promote biodiversity will be expected as part of all development 
schemes, focusing on native species from the locality and particularly trees, a key 
feature of the environment across Surrey. 

 
84. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV14 states that in considering development proposals account will 

be taken of any measures relevant to the proposals concerned to protect or enhance 
existing nature conservation features and scope to create and manage new areas of 
nature conservation value. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV15 is clear that where development 
will likely result in harm to a protected species or its habitat, a thorough site 
investigation will be necessary by the applicant and the relevant nature conservation 
bodies will be consulted. Development that would materially harm a protected species 
or its habitat will not be permitted. 

 
85. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV49 is clear that where significant development proposals fall 

within an Area of High Archaeological Potential the developer will be required to provide 
an initial assessment of the archaeological value of the site preferably before, or 
otherwise as part of, any planning application. 

 

Page 20

7



86. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV25 requires sufficient space should be allowed to enable existing 
trees of significant public amenity value to be retained. Similarly, MVLP 2000 Policy 
ENV53 requires the continued preservation and enhancement of existing tree cover in 
the built-up areas. ANDP 2017 Policy AS-En2 states that areas of amenity grass, grass 
verges, trees and hedges should be retained to maintain the open character of the 
village. Development proposals should retain significant trees and hedges with public 
amenity value wherever possible. 

 
Ecology 

87. The applicant has submitted a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal dated 19 March 2021 
(PEA) for the proposed development which sets out the proposed impacts and 
mitigation methods. 

88. The PEA establishes that no statutory or non-statutory designated sites of nature 
conservation importance were identified within the zone of influence as part of the desk 
study. On this basis, the PEA concludes that no adverse impacts are anticipated on 
statutory and non-statutory designated sites and their qualifying criteria for designation 
as a result of the proposed development and are therefore not considered an ecological 
constraint and are not considered further in this report. 

89. The PEA identities two parcels of ancient woodland and 44 parcels of habitats of 
principle importance within the zone of influence as part of the desk study, which the 
proposed development could indirectly adversely impact through ground pollution and 
increased surface run-off. Therefore, the PEA recommends a strict pollution prevention 
protocol be adhered to during the construction phase of the proposed development to 
ensure that dust and particulate pollution does not indirectly adversely impact the 
woodland and other surrounding habitats. 

90. In addition, the PEA identifies four species whose habitats are supported on the site and 
could be impacted by the development. 

91. Firstly, the site is considered to provide suitable commuting and foraging habitat for bats 
primarily along the woodland edge and the treelines along the western and southern 
Site boundaries. While these features are anticipated to be retained as part of the 
proposed development and therefore the proposed development is unlikely to impact 
foraging and commuting bats, the PEA recommends mitigation measures in relation to 
lighting during the construction and operational phase of the proposed development. 
This includes using minimum light levels, with warm white spectrum lighting and 
recessed internal luminaries in proximity to windows to minimise glare. 

92. Secondly, the PEA highlights that while unlikely, the construction of the proposed 
development could result in the death or injury to any reptiles on the site. Therefore, the 
PEA recommends that the clearance of any potentially suitable reptile habitat be 
undertaken using a sensitive vegetation clearance approach. Details of this are 
included in the PEA. 

93. Thirdly, shrub clearance could also have a direct adverse impact on nesting birds. To 
mitigate this, the PEA recommends that habitat clearance works be undertaken outside 
the main nesting bird season (between March and August (inclusive)). Where this is not 
possible, the PEA also recommends that all suitable nesting habitat must be inspected 
by an ecologist to determine the presence/absence of any nesting birds prior to 
clearance and establishes the control process should an active nest be identified.   

94. Finally, it is possible that foxes are present underneath Woodlands Building, therefore 
the PEA is clear that a suitably experienced ecologist should supervise the demolition 
of the existing Woodlands building and where foxes are found, temporarily pause 
demolition whilst any foxes are left to move undisturbed and of their own accord. 

Page 21

7



95. In addition, the PEA sets out a set of ecological enhancements comprising the 
installation and maintenance of bat brick or bay tubes into any new buildings and 
installation of bat boxes and artificial bird nest boxes onto existing on-site trees and any 
new buildings. 

96. The County Ecologist is satisfied with the surveys and assessments carried out as part 
of the PEA and considers the proposed ecological enhancements to be appropriate. To 
secure the enhancements, the County Ecologist recommends securing the proposed 
ecological enhancements by way of condition. Officers concur with this approach and 
also consider that the proposed mitigation measures and ecological enhancements 
should be secured through one condition. 

97. Officers consider that the submitted PEA provides a robust assessment of the ecological 
risks associated with the proposed development and recommends appropriate 
mitigation measures and ecological enhancements, and therefore accords with 
development plan Policy CS15 of the MVCS 2009 and Policies ENV14 and ENV15 of 
the MVLP 2000. 

Archaeology 

98. The County Archaeologist explains that although the proposed development is adjacent 
to an Area of High Archaeological Potential defined around the discovery of multi-period 
archaeological assets, the proposed extension and replacement building are relatively 
small and fall below the 0.4ha threshold at which archaeological assessment is required 
under Local Plan policies. They are also located in areas likely to have been subject to 
recent disturbance. Accordingly, the County Archaeologist raises no objection to the 
proposal and has no archaeological concerns. 

99. In view of the County Archaeologists comments, Officers are satisfied that an 
assessment of the archaeological value of the site is not required and therefore does 
not engage the wider requirements with development plan Policy ENV49 of the MVLP 
2000. 

Trees 

100. An Arboricultural Survey was undertaken of the existing trees on site, which assessed 
the quality and value of trees and identified material constraints. The Arboricultural 
Survey details the tree categorisation of the 72 individual trees, 11 tree groups and 2 
hedgerows surveyed on site, the majority of which fall within tree category B, and 
recommends prioritising the retention of higher category trees wherever possible. The 
submitted Arboricultural Survey is clear that the retention of all trees on site was a 
priority within the design process and the results of the survey were used to inform the 
design and location of the proposed development.  

101. To facilitate the Earl Building extension, some minor pruning of one tree (Turkey Oak 
T33) is proposed to provide adequate crown clearance in order to construct the 
extension. Additional crown clearance is also proposed within the northern and 
southern car parking areas for construction plant and delivery vehicles during the 
construction phase of the proposed development. The submitted Tree Survey and 
Arboricultural Implications Assessment (AIA) is clear that this pruning will prevent 
inadvertent damage to overhanging branches and any identified additional pruning 
requirements will be discussed with the project arboriculturist and agreed with the 
County Arboricultural Officer at the pre-commencement meeting. 

102. The proposed development will not result in the loss of any existing trees on site. 
However, the Earl Building extension will result in a small encroachment into the root 
protection areas (RPA) of two trees (cedar of Lebanon T35 and cider T38). To minimise 
the impact, the AIA details that the excavation of these RPAs will take place using hand 
tools under Arboricultural supervision. The AIA explains that given the minimal extent of 

Page 22

7



the proposed incursions, the impacts will have a negligible impact on the health and 
longevity of the trees, subject to adherence to the method statement contained within 
the AIA. 

103. The Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) contained within the AIA sets out the 
phasing works, including initial tree works, installation of tree protection fencing and 
ground protection, pre-commencement meeting construction phase and soft 
landscaping phase. 

104. Prior to initial tree works, trees will be checked for protected species in accordance with 
the PEA and will be carried out by an Arboricultural Association approved contractor. 
The Tree Protection Plan at Appendix 4 of the AIA illustrates the proposed location for 
the tree protection fencing which will be metal welded mesh panels in concrete or 
rubber feet and have signs affixed to it to explain their purpose. The tree protection 
fencing will be installed before any plant activity, ground works or construction activities 
commence at the site, and will remain in situ until the soft landscaping phase when all 
other construction activities in the vicinity are completed. 

105. In addition, temporary ground protection shall be installed in the locations shown on the 
Tree Protection Plan with purple hatching. These areas shall be accessed by large 
plant machinery and construction traffic, therefore the ground protection specification 
shall adhere to a cellular confinement system, a heavy-duty proprietary ground 
protection system, a pre-cast reinforced concrete slabs or a bespoke ground protection 
system. 

106. Precaution will be taken to prevent the storage and handling of harmful chemicals 
within the root protection areas of retained trees. Harmful chemicals include fuels, oils, 
bitumen, builder’s sand (which has a high salt content) and cement. Provision will also 
be made to prevent the storage and handling of harmful chemicals in areas proposed 
for further planting if the existing soil is intended to be retained. 

107. Finally, Arboricultural supervision will be required on the CMP plan, on-site routing of 
new services, pre-commencement meeting, and in the event that significant root growth 
is disturbed or a tree is inadvertently damaged during construction activities  

108. The County Arboriculturist has reviewed the submitted Tree Survey and Arboricultural 
Implications Assessment (AIA) and is satisfied with the proposed development and 
therefore does not raise an objection. The County Arboriculturist agrees with the tree 
grading and is satisfied that the proposed development will have a low Arboricultural 
impact as no trees are proposed to be removed. 

109. While the Earl Building extension will incur into the root protection areas (RPA) of two 
trees (T35 and T38), the County Arboriculturist considers this to be minor and 
acceptable provided the Arboricultural method statement details contained within the 
AIA are adhered. Officers propose to secure the implementation of the details 
contained within section 2.4 of the AIA and the Arboricultural method statement by way 
of a condition to ensure existing trees are protected during the construction phase of 
the development in accordance with development plan Policies ENV25 and ENV25 of 
the MVLP 2000 and Policy AS-En2 of the ANDP 2017. 

110. Officers consider that the proposed development will have a very minor impact on 
existing trees on site and that the incursion into two RPAs is acceptable provided the 
construction of the Earl Building extension is appropriately managed in accordance with 
the details set out in the AIA. Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposal is 
acceptable in relation to trees and meets the requirements of development plan Policies 
ENV25 and ENV25 of the MVLP 2000 and Policy AS-En2 of the ANDP 2017. 

 

Page 23

7



IMPACT ON RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 

Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 (MVLP 2000) 
Policy ENV22 - General Development Control Criteria  
Policy CF2 - Provision of New Community Facilities  
 
Policy 

 
111. MVLP 2000 Policy ENV22 requires development not to significantly harm the amenities 

of the occupiers of neighbouring properties by reason of overlooking or its 
overpowering effect in terms of noise, traffic or other adverse environmental impact. 
MVLP 2000 Policy CF2 requires that development for community facilities satisfies a 
number of criteria including not detracting from the character and appearance of the 
property and the surrounding area; no adverse impact on the amenities of the locality, 
especially those of neighbouring properties; and traffic generated by such development 
has no adverse effect on local residential amenity. 

 
Impact on Residential Amenity 

112. The proposed development encompasses a permanent 1FE increase of the St 
Andrews School from a 7FE to an 8FE and the expansion of classroom and supporting 
educational facilities to accommodate the permanent 150 increase in pupil numbers. 
The extension of the Earl Building, replacement of the Woodlands Building and 
retention of two modular classrooms will be for educational uses which is in keeping 
with the wider educational use of the school site in accordance with Policy CF2 of the 
MVLP 2000. Accordingly, the proposed development will not increase the current open 
hours of the school and any difference in pupil numbers will not change the level of 
noise arising from the site. Therefore Officers are satisfied that the proposed 
development will not change the level of noise arising from the site nor give rise any 
noise impact on local residents and is therefore in accordance with Policy ENV22 of the 
MVLP 2000. 

113. The proposed development has been designed with strong consideration of the existing 
design of the school site, using the materials and colours of the existing school 
buildings. Officers consider that the proposed design is in keeping with the existing site 
design and therefore will not impact on the wider character and appearance of the 
surrounding area in accordance with Policy CF2 of the MVLP 2000. 

114. Furthermore, the proposed height of the new and retained buildings will not exceed the 
existing height of the school site, as discussed in the design and visual amenity section 
above. The proposed development will be located to the rear of the school site and will 
be screened from local residential properties along Grange Road by the existing school 
buildings and boundary trees. Existing tree planting along the northern boundary of the 
school site will also screen views of the proposed Earl Building extension from Public 
Footpath 52 (Linden Pit Path), with the remaining proposed development screened by 
the other existing school buildings. Officers consider that the proposed development will 
be sufficiently screened from the view of neighbouring properties and therefore will not 
result in any adverse environmental impacts, including visual amenity, on local 
amenities in accordance with Policy ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. 

115. In view of the proposed use, scale and location of the proposed development, Officers 
are satisfied that the design of the proposed development will not result in any 
overlooking or loss of outlook to neighbouring residential properties nor detract from the 
character and appearance of the surrounding environment in accordance with Policies 
CF2 and ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. 

116. The issues surrounding traffic impacts to residents is discussed and considered with 
the Highways, Traffic and Access section below. 

Page 24

7



Acoustic Design 

117. The applicant submitted an Acoustic Design Report (ADR) 20/0474/R1 dated 4 June 
2021, which details a noise survey undertaken at the site to establish the existing noise 
climate. Based on the results of the survey, advice is given on the control of 
environmental noise break-in to the proposed new classroom block, Earl Building 
extension and refurbishment of the existing main school buildings. 

118. The ADR also includes recommendations for the constructions of the walls, floors and 
doors to achieve the internal sound insulation requirements of BB93, and a review of 
internal material finishes for each space within the proposed areas to ensure they meet 
the reverberation time requirements of BB93. 

119. Having reviewed the ADR, the County Noise Consultant (CNC) raised concerns with 
whether the noise monitoring had been conducted in accordance with the relevant 
British Standards and a lack of detailed calculations of the façade attenuation. 

120. To address this, the applicant submitted an amended ADR Rev 1 dated 18 August 
2021, which included greater detail on the Environmental Noise Survey methodology 
and the Noise Break-In Calculation Sheets at Appendix B of the amended ADR. 

121. Following a review of the amended ADR, the CNC confirmed no objection to the 
proposal, subject to a condition securing noise limits and a recommended informative 
on the measurement of noise limits. The CNC raised that wind direction to be a key 
component of determining how worst-case noise levels on site are likely to be. As the 
wind direction is not reported in the amended ADR, the CNC advises that the measured 
background noise levels could not be used in future assessments or that the design 
standards specified for external elements of the build are sufficient with respect to the 
worst-case noise from the M25. 

122. Officers consider that the amended ADR includes a complete and robust assessment of 
existing noise conditions and the proposed external and internal finishings. Officers are 
satisfied that the design of the proposed development will ensure the relevant British 
Standards on insultation and reverberation are met, and as a result the proposed 
development will not result in any significant adverse noise impact to internal users and 
to those external to the buildings. Officers are therefore satisfied that the proposed 
development accords with development plan Policy ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. 

Construction mitigation 

123. To minimise the noise, vibration and air quality impact arising from the construction 
phase of the proposed development, the applicant has submitted a Construction 
Management Plan (CMP). The CMP sets out that working hours will be limited to 08:00 
– 18:00 Monday-Friday and 0800-1300 on Saturdays and no work will take place on 
site during Sundays and bank holidays. Officers consider that the proposed 
construction hours will help to minimise the impact on residential amenity and will 
secure the hours by way of a condition. 

124. Where practical, a less noisy process and quiet equipment will be selected, and 
temporary barriers/enclosures will also be placed around works that may produce 
significant amounts of noise. Furthermore, construction activities will be located away 
from the site frontage to minimise the noise, dust and vibration impacts on neighbouring 
properties. Finally, the CMP is clear that site will comply fully with the ‘British Standard 
5228-1 2:2009: ‘Code of practice for noise and vibration control on construction and 
open sites’. 

125. Officers consider that these proposed noise and vibration mitigation measures will 
further help to minimise the impact of noise and vibration on local residents, and 

Page 25

7



therefore the proposed development accords with development plan Policies CF2 and 
ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. 

126. The CMP explains that any loose material stored on site will be sheeted to minimise 
dust emissions into the locality. The CMP is also clear that further mitigation measures 
relevant to the control of dust and emissions will also be implemented as appropriate to 
the scale of impact in accordance with the guidance document ‘Construction Dust: CIS 
36’ (published by Government Services ‘the Health and Safety Executive’, March 
2020). Officer consider that the proposed measures will help to minimise the emissions 
of dust and mitigate the impact on residential amenity and local air quality in 
accordance with development plan Policies CF2 and ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. 

 
127. Lastly, the CMP is clear that signage will be used to inform all those who may be 

affected by noise, dust or vibration arising from construction works, of the nature of the 
works, proposed hours of work and their expected duration. Officers consider that the 
use of signage to be appropriate and will ensure anyone affected by the development 
will know what has been permitted. 

 

DRAINAGE AND FLOOD RISK 

Mole Valley Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009 (MVCS 2009) 

Policy CS20 – Flood Risk Management 
Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 Saved Policies (MVLP 2000) 

Policy ENV65 – Drainage 
 
Policy 

 
128. Policy CS20 of the MVCS 2009 expects the use of appropriate sustainable drainage 

systems (SuDS) as part of any development proposals and requires a Flood Risk 
Assessment for sites within or adjacent to areas at risk of surface water flooding. To 
further reduce the risk from surface water flooding, Policy CS20 is clear that all 
development should work towards mimicking greenfield run-off situations. 

 
129. Policy ENV65 of the MVLP 2000 is clear that development will normally be permitted 

where foul sewers and sewage treatment works of adequate capacity and design are 
available or will be provided in time to serve the development. 

Drainage and Flood Risk 

130. The submitted Flood Risk Assessment sets out the hydrology of the local area and that 
the site has a low flood risk profile. As the proposed development is fully within Flood 
Zone 1, it is considered ‘appropriate’ in the Sequential and Exception Tests. Therefore 
the Flood Risk Assessment focuses on addressing the development’s drainage strategy 
and any impact on downstream properties. 

131. The FRA reports that the geology of the site is split east to west. While the majority of 
the site is dominated by sand, the north west of the site overlies clay, silt and sand. 
Therefore, there is likely to be a wide discrepancy in the soil’s porosity of the site which 
the FRA explains will be clarified by soil soakage testing. 

132. At present, the majority of the school’s surface water is routed into a culvert at the south 
west corner of the site. The replacement Woodlands Building is proposed to use this 
culvert as the geology likely facilitates infiltration drainage. 

133. There is also an existing soakaway, but this is located in the proposed area for the Earl 
Building extension. Therefore, the FRA proposes a replacement soakaway to the south 
of the Earl Building extension with capacity for the whole site and sized to hold a 1 in 10 

Page 26

7



years storm based on a conservative assumed infiltration rate. The FRA is clear that 
the calculations for this will be revised when the soil’s actual soakage rate has been 
determined through BRE365 testing. 

 
134. The FRA is clear that the offsite flow rate will be restricted to 1.0l/s in the critical 1% + 

40% Climate Change event, this being the practical minimum limit of screened orifice 
plates / vortex devices. As this will be less than that from the existing classroom block, 
excess water will be stored in an underground cellular attenuation tank. 

 
135. In addition, the foul drainage system will connect to the public foul sewer. This will be 

subject to an application to Thames Water under Section 106 of the Water Industry Act, 
following a capacity check. 

 
136. The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) has reviewed the submitted Flood Risk 

Assessment and is satisfied that the proposed drainage scheme meets the 
requirements set out in the relevant development plan policy and is therefore satisfied 
with the proposed development. Accordingly, the LLFA raise no objection subject to the 
inclusion of two conditions. 

137. The first condition seeks to secure the submission and approval of details of the design 
of a surface water management scheme prior to the commencement of development to 
ensure the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site. The second 
condition seeks to secure the submission and approval of a verification report 
confirming the surface water drainage system has been constructed in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development. The LLFA also 
recommend an informative on the Environment Agency need for proof of surface water 
treatment. 

138. Thames Water as the sewerage provider for the area raise no objection to the proposal 
subject to the inclusion of three informatives. 

 
139. Officers consider that the submitted FRA is robust and suitably follows the SuDS 

Hierarchy when setting out the proposed drainage strategy. Officers are satisfied that 
the proposed drainage strategy will be able to manage the surface water on site 
following the proposed development. Officers concur with the LLFA recommendation of 
a condition to secure the detailed submission and approval of the proposed drainage 
system following soakage testing and prior to the commencement of development on 
site. Officers consider that the proposed foul drainage system is acceptable and, in 
view of Thames Water’s consultee response, are satisfied that the local foul sewer has 
capacity. In view of this, Officers are satisfied that the proposed development accords 
with Policy CS20 of the MVCS 2009 and Policy ENV65 of the MVLP 2000. 

IMPACT ON PLAYING FIELDS 

Mole Valley Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009 (MVCS 2009) 

Policy CS16 - Open Space, Sports and Recreation Facilities 
Ashtead Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 (ANDP 2017) 

Policy AS-En1 – School Playing Fields 
 

Policy 
 

140. Policy CS16 of the MVCS 2009 encourages the provision of new open space, sports 
and recreation facilities provided they accord with the principles of the Planning 
Practice Guidance 17 (PPG17) and the Mole Valley PPG17 Assessment. These 
documents have been replaced by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
20211 which sets out the Government’s Planning Policies for England. 

                                                 
1 National Planning Policy Guidance 2021 

Page 27

7

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1005759/NPPF_July_2021.pdf


 
141. In this respect paragraphs 98 and 99 of the NPPF states that access to a network of 

high quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and physical activity is important 
for the health and well-being of communities. Existing open space, sports and 
recreational buildings and land, including playing fields, should not be built on unless:  
a) an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space, 

buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or  

b) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent 
or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location; or  

c) the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the benefits of 
which clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use.  

 
142. ANDP 2017 Policy AS-En1 is clear that the expansion of school premises should 

include the retention of playing field land for the use of the school for sports activities. 
Planning applications for the expansion of schools and associated facilities should also 
demonstrate that the retained playing field space has taken account of its potential for 
wider community use outside school hours.  

 
Impact on Playing Fields 

 
143. As detailed in paragraph 21 above, the proposed extension of the existing Earl Building 

would occupy approximately 171.8m2 of the current playing field. To address this, the 
applicant has submitted a Pitch Assessment. 

 
144. The Pitch Assessment sets out that the main site playing field upon which the Earl 

Building extension would be partially located is used as an informal and social area for 
pupils during break-times due to its limited size. This existing soft play area is 
undersized at 37,188m3 when compared to the BB103 recommended minimum area of 
56,750m2. Therefore, the existing soft play area is insufficiently sized to accommodate 
pitch lines. 

 
145. In addition, the Pitch Assessment explains that the area of the soft playing area which 

the Earl Building extension would occupy comprises of two concrete strips located at 
the north end of the existing soft play area. These were previously used for cricket 
practice wickets with nets but are no longer used as cricket practice is provided on the 
sports playing fields to the north of the main school site. Given their location within this 
area of the soft playing field, the Pitch Assessment puts forward that this area is 
incapable of forming part of a playing pitch. 

 
146. Furthermore, the Pitch Assessment details that the existing welded mesh fencing for 

the soft play area is at an acute angle, which necessitates any pitch to be located more 
centrally in the playing field to provide adequate safety margins to the fence lines. 
Therefore, this forms another reason as to why the area of soft playing field which the 
Earl Building extension is proposed to occupy is unsuitable for forming part of playing 
pitch. 

 
147. In view of these factors, the Pitch Assessment concludes that the proposed 

development meets exemption 3 of the Sport England’s Playing Fields Policy. 
Exemption 3 is clear that development is exempt where it only affects land incapable of 
forming part of a playing pitch and does not: reduce the size of the playing pitch; result 
in the inability to use any playing pitch; reduce the sporting capacity of the playing field 
to accommodate playing pitches or the capability to rotate or reposition playing pitches 
to maintain their quality; result in the loss of other sporting provision or ancillary facilities 
on the site; or prejudice the use of any part of a playing field and any of its playing 
pitches. 

 
148. Sport England recognised that the proposed development would result in a minor 

encroachment onto the playing field as but having considered the nature of the playing 

Page 28

7



field and its ability to accommodate a range of pitches, Sport England concur with the 
applicant’s conclusion that there is not considered to be any detrimental impact on the 
ability to mark out pitches in this location or on the overall sporting capability of the site. 
Therefore, following a review of the submitted Pitch Assessment and associated 
proposal details, Sport England consider that the proposal broadly meets exception E3 
of the Sport England Playing Fields Policy and therefore raise no objection to this 
application. 

149. Officers concur with the Pitch Assessments application of Exemption 3 of the Sport 
England’s Playing Fields Policy and the views of Sport England. Officers are satisfied 
with the assessment undertaken as part of this planning application and consider that 
the assessment adequately demonstrates that the proposal will not reduce the 
provision of playing fields used for sporting activities in accordance with the 
requirements set out in paragraph 99 of the NPPF and development plan Policy CS16 
of the MVCS 2009 and Policy AS-En1 of the ANDP 2017. 

 

HIGHWAY, TRAFFIC AND ACCESS 

Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 (MVLP 2000) 
Policy MOV2 - The Movement Implications of Development  
Policy MOV5 - Parking Standards  
Policy CF2 - Provision of New Community Facilities 
Policy ENV22 - General Development Control Criteria  
Policy ENV67 - Groundwater Quality 
 
Policy 

 
150. Policy MOV2 of the MVLP 2000 details that development will only be permitted where it 

can be made compatible with the transport infrastructure and the environmental 
character in the area and where appropriate developers will be required to contribute to 
transportation initiatives and highways improvements. 

 
151. Furthermore, Policy MOV2 states that proposal for major development will only be 

permitted where it can be demonstrated that in order to accommodate the traffic 
generated by that development appropriate measures are made to obviate the 
environmental impact, and there is appropriate provision for: (i) off-street vehicular 
parking; (2) suitable servicing arrangements; (iii) vehicular access and egress and 
movement within the site: (iv) capacity on the transport network and in the vicinity of the 
development; (v) access and egress to be obtained, or improved, to and from the 
primary route and distributor road networks; (vi) public transport services; (vii) 
pedestrians and cyclists; and (viii) people with disabilities. 

 
152. In addition, MOV2 is clear that where a particular part of the highway network already 

endures high traffic flows significantly above its operational and environmental capacity, 
only small-scale development or redevelopment, which leads to little or no new traffic 
generation, will be permitted. The cumulative effects of existing and committed 
development on the operational capacity and environmental character of congested 
areas as a whole will be considered in the determination of development proposals. 

 
153. Policy MOV5 applies the County Council’s parking standards as maxima, having regard 

to the developer’s own requirements and subject to road safety or traffic management 
implications and the accessibility of the location to means of travel other than the 
private car. The specific criteria applied to development of community facilities under 
Policy CF2 includes that parking and access requirements can be satisfactorily 
accommodated and that the amount of traffic generated would not adversely affect the 
highway or safety of residential amenities in the locality. In addition, Policy CF2 requires 
that the location of the proposed development is accessible to the population being 

Page 29

7



served including by public transport. Similarly, the relevant parts of Policy ENV22 
requires a design and layout which provides safe access to the site and adequate 
parking in accordance with adopted standards. Policy ENV67 of the MVLP 2000 states 
that where development may have an adverse impact on the quality of groundwater, 
development will not be permitted. 

 
Traffic 

 
154. The applicant has submitted a Transport Statement which sets out that the permanent 

increase of pupils from 1,050 to 1,200 will result in peak hour trips on an average 
weekday of approximately 35 two-way vehicles trips in the morning peak hour (0800-
0900) and approximately 18 two-way vehicle trips in the evening peak hour (1500-
1600).  

 
155. As detailed in paragraph 19 above, the proposed permanent 1FE expansion will not 

result in an increase in pupils at the school as the school currently operates as an 8FE 
school due to a number of bulge classes. Accordingly, the proposed 1FE expansion 
seeks to permanently accommodate the existing number of pupils at the site. As a 
result, the proposed development will not result in an increased impact on traffic from 
the existing impact.  

 
156. The main issues raised by representations objecting to the proposal focus on existing 

traffic and parking issues along Grange Road and the surrounding highway in part as a 
result of the proximity of a number of schools and due to limited capacity on the ground. 
There are also concerns that the impact will increase with the proposed increase in 
pupil numbers. Local residents further raised highway safety issues associated with 
poor parent parking along both sides of the carriageway and in front of property 
accesses.  

 
157. In responses to representations the CHA states that the vehicle parking issue on 

Grange Road and Ottways is exacerbated by the proximity of several schools within a 
relative location. However, there are parking restrictions in form of yellow lines and 
when assessed on its merits the proposed development is not considered severe 
compared to the existing situation. The Highway Authority must assess the planning 
application in accordance with the NPPF (2021) and can only refuse a planning 
application if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual 
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 
158. The CHA has also confirmed that there are good walking/cycling routes to this school, 

especially along the A24, which has a shared footway/cycleway along it, and there are 
2 recent accidents recorded as slight on Grange Road in 2016 and 2018. In addition, 
there are some highway improvements planned in the area, namely traffic calming 
measures and the introduction of a 20mph speed limit along Grange Road outside the 

school. 
 
159. Therefore, the CHA has taken the view that an additional 20 vehicles for the pupils and 

staff (an additional 13.3% compared to the existing), will not have an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, or severe residual cumulative impacts on the road network. 
The increase is low as secondary school pupils are more likely to travel by alternative 
modes of transport other than cars in comparison to primary school pupils. 
Furthermore, the increase in trips is not enough for further investigation of the road 
network or junction modelling. Conditions to mitigate the raised road safety concerns 
can only be imposed by the County Highway Authority if there is a significant concern 
on highway safety or residual cumulative impacts on the road network. In this instance 
the proposed development is not deemed detrimental to the public highway safety. In 
view of these comments, the CHA raises no objection to the proposal development on 
traffic grounds. 

 

Page 30

7



160. Officers have reviewed the submitted documentation, representations from local 
residents and the CHA comments and are satisfied that the proposed permanent 1FE 
increase in pupil numbers is small in scale and does not require further investigations. 
Officers consider that the existing highway has sufficient capacity for the existing and 
proposed expansion. Officers also consider that the planned highway improvements will 
support highway users safety through reduced traffic speed. Officers recognise 
residents’ concerns and frustrations with the existing traffic during peak times but note 
that this is only for a temporary period of time during peak hours on week days during 
term times. Therefore, Officers are satisfied that the proposed permanent increase in 
pupil numbers will not result in any significantly adverse impacts by way of traffic and 
therefore accords with development plan policies MOV2, MOV5 and CF2 of the MVLP 
2000. 

Highways 
 
161. The applicant has submitted a Construction Management Plan (CMP) which details 

how the construction phase of the proposed development will be managed to ensure 
safety and minimise impacts to site users and neighbouring properties.  

 
162. The CMP sets out that the site working hours will be between 08:00 – 18:00 Monday-

Friday and 0800-1300 on Saturdays. No work will take place on site during Sundays 
and bank holidays. No deliveries to or from the site will occur between the hours of 
0800 - 0900, 1500 - 1600 and 1700 – 1800 thereby avoiding peak access and egress 
hours and ensuring highway user safety and minimise traffic impact. The deliveries of 
material as part of the proposed development will be carried out over a temporary 
period of 12 months. Officers consider that the proposed site working hours to be 
acceptable and will help to minimise the impact of construction activities on 
neighbouring properties in accordance with development plan Policies MOV2 and 
ENV67 of the MVLP 2000. 

 
163. There will be approximately 8-12 lorry movements (4-6 deliveries) to and from the site 

per day during weekdays and 4-6 total construction staff vehicles accessing the site per 
day.  The CMP explains that as the site will only generate around 4-6 vehicle deliveries 
per day and 4-6 staff per day, it is considered the vehicle impact of the development will 
have no effect on the local highway network and can be easily accommodated. 

 

164. To minimise the noise, vibration and air quality impact arising from construction traffic, 
the CMP details a clear freight deliveries routing strategy which prioritises primary 
highways including the M25, A3, A24 and A243. Furthermore, noisy construction 
activities, including deliveries, will be undertaken off the highway and access to the site 
to mitigate noise pollution. The CMP is also clear that delivery vehicles will turn left off 
Grange Road to access the site and turn right onto Grange Road to egress the site 
thereby avoiding delivery traffic along Ottways Lane. 

 
165. Officers consider that the proposed number of vehicle movements to be small and will 

not result in an adverse increase to the number of movements on the highway. Officers 
are satisfied that the existing site infrastructure will be able to accommodate the 
additional, temporary movements to and from the site. Officers are also satisfied that 
the proposed location of construction activities, including deliveries, off Grange Road 
and away from the school frontage will help to minimise the impact of noise and 
vibrations arising from proposed development on neighbouring properties and highway 
users in accordance with development plan Policy MOV2 of the MVLP 2000. Officers 
also consider that the proposed routing strategy will encourage the use of primary 
routes, thereby minimising the impact on smaller roads in accordance with development 
plan Policy MOV2. 

 
166. Any loose material being transported to site will be sheeted to minimise dust emissions 

and debris on the highway. A wheel wash facility will also be provided onsite to ensure 

Page 31

7



no material is tracked onto the highway. Further mitigation measures relevant to the 
control of dust and emissions will be implemented as appropriate to the scale of impact 
in accordance with the guidance document ‘Construction Dust: CIS 36’ (published by 
Government Services ‘the Health and Safety Executive’, March 2020). 

 
167. Officers are satisfied that the proposed wheel wash and sheeting of loose material will 

minimise the emission of dust into the local surroundings, thereby mitigating the 
adverse impact of the proposed development on air quality and highway safety in 
accordance with development plan Policies MOV2 and ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. 
Officers are also satisfied that the control of dust will minimise the pollution of local 
groundwater in accordance with development plan Policy ENV67 of the MVLP 2000. 

 
168. To ensure highway user safety during the construction phase of the development, 

appropriate advanced signage will be provided to ensure drivers are aware of the site’s 
location and alert passing motorists of the likelihood of emerging HGV’s. A site operator 
will be required at the access point of the site to direct delivery vehicles and to 
supervise and ensure the safe movement of plant and vehicles. The site operator will 
also be required to supervise vehicles egressing the site to minimise impact and ensure 
safety of pedestrians and cyclists. A collision reporting system will be mandated to 
ensure all collisions and accidents involving the projects’ vehicle and drivers are 
reported to the site operator and any relevant parties. If vehicles are required to stop to 
enable plant and construction vehicles to enter/exit the site, a double-sided, reflective 
‘stop works sign’ (Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 7031) will be used 
for maximum of 2 minutes. Finally, everyone working on site will complete an induction 
on the details contained within the CMP including hours of operation, details of the local 
area, health and safety information, methods of working and a site map. 

 
169. Officers consider that the proposed highway access and safety arrangements detailed 

within the CMP will ensure the safety of all highway users in accordance with 
development plan Policies MOV2 and ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. Furthermore, Officers 
are satisfied that the site can adequately accommodate the proposed development 
construction vehicles and deliveries in accordance with development plan Policies 
MOV2 and ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. 

170. The County Highway Authority (CHA) has assessed the proposed development on 
safety, capacity and policy grounds and raises no objection on highways or construction 
impact grounds. The CHA is satisfied with the submitted CMP and recommends the 
CMP’s approval subject to a condition securing the submission and approval of a plan 
showing parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors; loading and 
unloading of plant and materials; storage of plant and materials; and HGV turning area, 
prior to the commencement of development. In addition, the CHA has recommended 
informatives on the monitoring, maintenance and cleanliness of the highway to ensure 
highway safety. Officers concur with the CHA’s comments and recommendations and 
will secure the approval of the submitted CMP and the submission and approval of a 
CMP plan by way of conditions. 

Parking 
 
171. The Transport Statement also sets out the existing and proposed parking for the site. At 

present, the school currently has provisions for 112 cycle parking spaces for pupils. 
Based on the modal split for pupils set out in the submitted St Andrews Catholic School 
Travel Plan, the cycle parking demand generated by the additional 150 pupils is only 6 
cycle parking spaces and an overall cycle parking demand of 50 spaces for the 1,200 
students. Therefore, the Transport Statement is clear that the 112 existing cycle parking 
spaces provided is appropriate for the cycle parking demand generated by the 1,200 
pupils. 

 

Page 32

7



172. With regards to staff, the school employs 128 full time members of staff and 12 part 
time members of staff. The part time figure is halved to 6 to produce a total full-time 
equivalent figure of 134 staff. The Transport Statement explains that as a result of the 
1FE expansion, there will only be an increase of 7 full time members of staff in 
association. Furthermore, as the baseline modal split for staff set out in the submitted 
Travel Plan has demonstrated, 65% of people in the Mole Valley District drive to work 
which is equivalent to 87 staff. Therefore, in accordance with SCC Vehicular and Cycle 
Parking Guidance dated 20182 car parking standards, the existing parking provision is 
considered to be appropriate for the proposed development. The existing parking 
provision includes visitor parking spaces at the front of the school and staff parking to 
the rear. In addition, in accordance with SCC Vehicular and Cycle Parking Guidance2, 
the provision of on-site parent/visitor parking spaces will encourage less sustainable 
forms of travel and so no additional parent/visitor parking spaces are being provided as 
part of the proposed development. 

 
173. Based on the information provided, a site visit during term time hours and the advice 

given to the applicant at pre-planning stage, the CHA has assessed the proposed 
development and concluded that the proposal will not have any significant adverse 
impact on the local highway network. The proposed development can be 
accommodated on-site and based on the SCC Vehicular and Cycle Parking Guidance 
(2018)2 no provision for parent or pupils parking should be provided by the school. 
Furthermore, parent parking, pupil parking and drop off/pick up areas should not be 
provided as this is a disincentive to travelling by sustainable modes. 

 
174. Officers consider that the assessment of existing parking facilities is robust and is clear 

that additional cycle, staff and visitor/parent parking is not required as part of the 
proposed small increase in pupil numbers. Officers are therefore satisfied that the 
existing parking facilities are sufficient to accommodate the small proposed increase in 
pupil numbers and accordingly meets the requirements of development plan policies 

MOV2, MOV5 and CF2 of the MVLP 2000. 
 
School Travel Plan 

 
175. The applicant has submitted a School Travel Plan (STP) based on 2011 Nomis Census 

data which sets out the existing transport facilities and modal split of daily staff and 
pupils trips. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, a baseline survey was unable to be 
conducted during the production of the submitted STP. The STP aims to enhance the 
awareness and use of sustainable transport options and establishes indicative staff and 
pupil modal targets over a five year period. To manage the implementation of the STP, 
a Travel Plan Co-ordinator is proposed to be appointed who will also be responsible for 
the delivery of the STP Action Plan. The STP is proposed to be updated as new survey 
data is made available. 

 
176. Having reviewed the STP, the CHA has raised concerns with the lack of a baseline 

survey and the use of 2011 Census data. The CHA considers that the use of this data 
as the basis for the STP targets to be unacceptable as the data is no longer accurate. 
In addition, the STP lacks detail on specific issues facing the school and targeted 
actions for the site, and on the Travel Plan Co-ordinator. Therefore, the CHA does not 
recommend the approval of the submitted STP and requires the submission and an 
approval of an up-to-date STP prior to the first occupation of the proposed 
development. The CHA also recommends the use of the Modeshift STARS system as a 
user-friendly and effective way of producing and managing a STP, which Officers will 
include as an informative. 

 

                                                 
2 SCC Vehicular and Cycle Parking Guidance (2018) 

Page 33

7

https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/policies-plans-consultations/transport-plan/surrey-transport-plan-strategies/parking-strategy


177. Officers concur with the CHA comments that the STP is based on outdated information, 
rendering the STP inaccurate and lacking targeted actions. Officers recognise that 
these concerns have also been expressed in representations against the proposal. 
Officers consider that it is unfortunate that an updated STP was not provided with this 
planning application but are satisfied in agreement with the CHA that the proposed 
development is acceptable. Therefore, Officers will secure an updated STP by way of a 
condition to ensure that the development does not prejudice highway safety nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users in accordance with development plan Policies 
MOV2, MOV5 and CF2 of the MVLP 2000. 

 
Access 

 
178. St Andrews Schools is accessed off the southern side of Grange Road, a two-way 30 

mile per hour (mph) speed limit road. Officers note that the proposed Highway 
Improvement Plans for the area include reducing this speed to 20mph. Grange Road 
has pavements on both sides of the road, but no dedicated cycle routes. There are two 
separate gated pedestrian access points at either end of the site’s frontage onto 
Grange Road. The main access roadway is one-way, with separate entrance and exit 
gates off Grange Road and there is a separate access point for staff and deliveries at 
the northern end of the site frontage. The existing access arrangements ensure 
vehicles have sufficient space to turn and leave in a forward gear. 

 
179. Officers consider that the existing access is sufficient to accommodate the proposed 

additional 150 pupils and are satisfied that the separated access and egress points will 
ensure the safety of all highway users, including pedestrian, cyclists and vehicular, 
accessing the site off Grange Road, and accommodates servicing and delivery access 
in accordance with development plan Policies MOV2 and ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. 

180. The submitted Transport Statement establishes that in regard to public transport there 
are four public school bus services (617, 618, 619 and 668) that serve the school twice 
a day, Monday to Friday and the nearest railway station is Leatherhead Railway 
Station, located approximately 1.9km (24-minute walk or 10-minute cycle) west of the 
site. The Transport Statement is clear that there will be no changes to the existing 
school bus stop location and buses will continue to set down on Grange Road as per to 
the existing access arrangements, which are considered to be effective. School mini 
buses will continue to be parked in the staff car park as per the existing school mini bus 
parking arrangements. There will be no changes to the existing access or internal 
access road layout and refuse and emergency vehicle access arrangements will remain 
as existing. 

 
181. Officers consider that the wider highway and public transport facilities ensure that the 

school is in a sustainable and accessible location in accordance with development plan 
Policy CF2 of the MVLP 2000.  

182. In terms of construction access, the submitted Construction Management Plan (CMP) 
states that the existing surfacing is suitable for all construction purposes and there will 
be an on-site speed restriction of 5mph, which will be monitored by site operatives. 
Furthermore, the onsite access roads will be used by vehicles to make direct deliveries 
to the designated area of the new development and the CMP is clear that vehicles have 
sufficient space to turn and leave in a forward gear. At all times access will be 
maintained for emergency vehicles including during the working day, and if emergency 
vehicles need to gain access to the site, all unloading/ collections will stop and the 
works vehicle will clear the area with drivers staying with their vehicles at all times. 

 
183. Moreover, during the construction phase there will be a maximum of about 4-6 

deliveries to the site daily during the height of construction. To avoid morning and 
evening peak hours when staff and pupils are entering and egressing the site, no 

Page 34

7



deliveries to or from the site will occur between the hours of 0800 - 0900, 1500 - 1600 
and 1700 - 1800. 

 
184. Officers are satisfied that the existing access arrangements can adequately 

accommodate the proposed development construction vehicles and deliveries without 
impeding emergency vehicle access and ensuring the safety of other highway users in 
accordance with development plan Policies MOV2 and ENV22 of the MVLP 2000. 

 
185. Mole Valley District Council and the CHA raise no objection in regard to access 

arrangements and safety for the proposed development. Officers are satisfied that the 
existing access arrangements are acceptable to accommodate the proposed 
permanent 1FE increase and will not result in any adverse safety risk to highway users 
and those accessing and egressing the site. Officers consider that the proposed access 
arrangements during the construction phase are also appropriate in terms of safety. 
Accordingly, Officers are satisfied that the proposed development accords with the 
development plan Policies MOV2, CF2 and ENV22 of the MVLP 2000 on access. 

 
Conclusion on Highways, Traffic and Access 
 

186. Officers are satisfied that the proposed 1FE expansion will not result in any significantly 
adverse impacts by way of traffic and consider that the existing highway has sufficient 
capacity for the existing and proposed expansion. Officers are satisfied that the existing 
access and parking provisions at the school site are sufficient to accommodate the 1FE 
expansion and construction deliveries and staff during the temporary construction 
phase of the development. Officers consider that the submitted CTP proposed 
appropriate mitigation measures to ensure the proposed development will not result in 
any significantly adverse impacts from the construction traffic and activities. Officers 
consider that there is a need for an updated School Travel Plan and that this will be 
secured by way of a planning condition. Officers are therefore satisfied that the 
proposed development will not result in any significant adverse impacts by way of 
highways, traffic, parking or access and therefore accords with the development plan 
Policies MOV2, MOV5, CF2, ENV22 and ENV67 of the MVLP 2000. 

 

 
METROPOLITAN GREEN BELT 

Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 (MVLP 2000) 

Policy ENV23 - Respect for Setting 

Policy 

187. Paragraph 147 of the NPPF states that inappropriate development is, by definition, 
harmful to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special 
circumstances. Paragraph 148 of the NPPF is clear that when considering any planning 
application, local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to 
any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the 
potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm 
resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations. 

188. Paragraph 149 of the NPPF explains that a local planning authority should regard the 
construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt. Exceptions to this are: 

a) buildings for agriculture and forestry; 
b) the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or 

a change of use) for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and burial 
grounds and allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the 
Green Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within it; 

Page 35

7



c) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in 
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building; 

d) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not 
materially larger than the one it replaces; 

e) limited infilling in villages; 
f) limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the 

development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and 
g) limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed 

land, whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), 
which would: ‒ not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than 
the existing development; or ‒ not cause substantial harm to the openness of the 
Green Belt, where the development would re-use previously developed land and 
contribute to meeting an identified affordable housing need within the area of the 
local planning authority. 

 
189. Paragraph 150 of the NPPF states that certain other forms of development are also not 

inappropriate in the Green Belt provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict 
with the purposes of including land within it. These are: 
a) mineral extraction; 
b) engineering operations; 
c) local transport infrastructure which can demonstrate a requirement for a Green Belt 

location; 
d) the re-use of buildings provided that the buildings are of permanent and substantial 

construction; 
e) material changes in the use of land (such as changes of use for outdoor sport or 

recreation, or for cemeteries and burial grounds); and 
f) development, including buildings, brought forward under a Community Right to 

Build Order or Neighbourhood Development Order The proposed development 
comprises of a two-storey extension to the existing Earl Building, construction of a 
new two-storey classroom block to replace the existing single storey Woodlands 
Building, permanent retention of two modular classroom units and minor external 
works to existing building access levels. 

 
190. Paragraph 95 of the NPPF identifies the importance of there being a sufficient choice of 

school places to meet the needs of existing and new communities. Local planning 
authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting this 
requirement, and to development that will widen choice in education. They should: 

a) give great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools through the 
preparation of plans and decisions on applications; and 
b) work with school promoters, delivery partners and statutory bodies to identify and 
resolve key planning issues before applications are submitted. 

 
191. In addition, MVLP 2000 Policy ENV23 states that development will normally be 

permitted where it respects its setting taking account of the impact of the development 
within or conspicuous from the Green Belt on the rural amenities of the Green Belt by 
reason of its siting, materials or design. 

Harm to Green Belt and Very Special Circumstances 

192. In view of paragraphs 149 and 150, it is clear that the proposed development is not an 
exception and therefore constitutes inappropriate development in the Metropolitan 
Green Belt. The applicant has submitted a Green Belt Statement which puts forward 
very special circumstances which are considered to outweigh the harm to the Green 
Belt. 

193. These very special circumstances include the necessity of the proposed development. 
Surrey County Council has a statutory duty to provide sufficient school places for pupils 
in the district and St Andrews School has a long established use as a school located 

Page 36

7



wholly in the Green Belt. As the purpose of the proposed development is effectively to 
provide sufficient accommodation for the existing pupil number at St Andrews School, 
as the pupil number has gradually increased through bulge classes and this application 
is seeking to make the increase permanent, it has not been relevant to consider options 
for accommodating a 1FE expansion at other schools outside the Green Belt. 

194. Officers consider that there is a clearly identified need for the 1FE expansion at St 
Andrews School to permanently accommodate an additional 150 pupils already at the 
school due to a number of bulge classes. The place projections for the school site are 
clear that the demand for places currently accommodated by bulge classes will be 
sustained and therefore there is a need to make the change in FE permanently. 
Officers recognise that the 1FE expansion cannot be responsibly located at another 
school outside of the Green Belt as the pupils are already at the school site. 

195. Furthermore, St Andrews School is the only Catholic secondary school in Mole Valley 
District and therefore the only school which can accommodate the long term Catholic 
demand for places in the locality. Officers note the details of paragraph 95 of the NPPF 
and therefore places great weight to the identified need to expand and alter St Andrews 
School and to ensure sufficient choice of school places to meet the needs of existing 
and new communities. 

196. In addition, Officers consider that there is a need for additional classrooms to 
accommodate the permanent 1FE expansion and that the proposed Earl Building 
extension, new block classroom and permanent retention of two modular classrooms 
are an appropriate solution by way of their design, scale and location within the school 
site. 

197. The Green Belt Statement goes on to explain that the proposed extensions, new 
building and associated external works will be constructed on previously developed 
land or areas of low-value grass. The chosen sites within school grounds are the most 
suitable option for school operational reasons. The scale, positioning and design of 
proposed development has been carefully considered to minimise the impact on the 
Green Belt. 

198. It is clear to Officers that the proposed development has sought to minimise impact on 
the openness of the Green Belt by virtue of the proposals design and location within the 
school site. Officers are satisfied that the proposed design and scale of the 
development is in keeping with the existing site school use, existing school buildings 
and the surrounding environment. Officers consider that the proposed development will 
support and enhance the existing local character and will not result in any harm by way 
of visual and residential amenity. Furthermore, Officers consider that the screened 
locations for the proposed development on previously developed land and areas of low-
value grass are also appropriate and will support the existing school use and scale. 

199. The Green Belt Statement provides further detail on the proposed Earl Building 
extension, including that the extension is situated in the North West corner of the site, 
adjacent to dense mature trees. The proposed new build classroom block will be 
situated between the existing single-storey DT Block and double-heights Sports Hall. 
The positions of the proposed new building classroom block and Earl Building 
extension mean they will be screened by existing buildings and trees to views from 
residential properties to the North East. The remaining boundaries of St Andrews 
School are bordered by other schools and the M25. It is suggested that the proposed 
new build and extension will not harm the visual amenities or openness of the Green 
Belt. 

200. The height of the extension has been carefully considered to align with the existing Earl 
Building and will comprise the same materiality and architectural features. The new 
build classroom block will be a storey taller than the existing Woodlands Building to be 

Page 37

7



demolished. However, the height of the new build will comprise the same materiality 
and architectural features of the existing buildings. The existing Sports Hall is a taller 
more dominant feature adjacent to the proposed new build classroom block. 

201. In view of the Green Belt Statement, Mole Valley District Council (MVDC) highlights that 
the site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt where there is a presumption against 
inappropriate development within the Green Belt. The proposed development 
represents inappropriate development and does not fall within any of the specifically 
identified exceptions outlined in paragraph 149 – 150 of the NPPF. It is noted that a 
case for Very Special Circumstances (VSC) has been put forward and MVDC advise 
that careful consideration is given to the content. However, by definition, VSC tend to 
be unique to the circumstances of each specific proposal and the application needs to 
be considered on its own merits. The benefit of meeting the need would need to be very 
carefully weighed against the harm to the Green Belt, to which the national guidance 
attaches significant importance. 

202. Officers recognise that the proposed development is inappropriate and due to the 
expansion of the physical massing of buildings on the school site, will have some 
impact on the openness of the Green Belt. However, in considering the location of the 
proposed development within a long standing school site in the Green Belt, the 
identified need for the development and the sensitive design of the proposed 
development, Officers consider that the impact on openness will be moderate. 

203. Officers note that the statutory consultees have raised no objection on the proposed 
development and the proposed development accords with the relevant development 
plan policy on Need for Community Facilities; Sustainable Design, Scale and 
Landscaping; Ecology, Trees and Archaeology; Impact on Residential Amenity; 
Drainage and Flood Risk; Impact on Playing Fields; and Highways, Transport and 
Access. Officers recognise that there will be some other impacts during the construction 
of the proposed development, but that these will be temporary and the applicant has 
proposed appropriate mitigation measures to minimise the impacts on local residents 
and highway users. Therefore, Officers considers the other impacts to be temporary, 
and therefore of minor harm in respect of Green Belt. 

Conclusion on Green Belt 

204. The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt where very 
special circumstances have to exist to warrant planning approval. Those very special 
circumstances must outweigh the harm cause by reason of the inappropriate nature of 
the proposal but also any other harm arising. Officers conclude that the proposed 
development will result in a moderate harm on the openness of the Green Belt by virtue 
of the developments physical massing within the Green Belt, including a further 
temporary impact during construction activities. However Officers consider that the 
applicant has sufficiently demonstrated an essential need for the proposed 
development which represents very special circumstances and which outweighs the 
harm caused. Officers consider it is appropriate having regard to the advice contained 
in paragraph 95 of the NPPF to place great weight on the need to expand St Andrews 
School site to provide sufficient choice of school places and to meet existing, local, 
Catholic and projected demand and therefore accords with the requirements of the 
NPPF and Policy ENV23 of the MVLP 2000. 

Human Rights Implications 

205. The Human Rights Act Guidance for Interpretation, contained in the Preamble to the 
Agenda is expressly incorporated into this report and must be read in conjunction with 
the following paragraph. 

206. It is Officer’s view that the scale of any potential impacts are not considered sufficient to 
engage Article 8 or Article 1 and that potential impacts can be mitigated by planning 

Page 38

7



conditions. As such, this proposal is not considered to interfere with any Convention 
right. 

Conclusion 

207. The proposal is for the permanent one form of entry expansion comprising two storey 
extension to the existing Earl Building to provide additional teaching and supporting 
accommodation; demolition of existing ‘Woodlands Building’ and erection of a 
replacement two storey standalone block comprising teaching and supporting 
accommodation; permanent retention of two demountable classroom units; modification 
of existing Main Building and Performing Arts Building elevations to provide new 
external windows and doors to suit altered internal layout and ventilation strategy; and 
associated external works and landscaping. 

208. Officers consider that there is an identified need for the proposed development at St 
Andrews School, and Officers are satisfied that the proposed design, scale and location 
of development within the site is in keeping with the existing sites material palette and 
use as an educational facility and the wider local character, and will facilitate the site to 
accommodate the additional 150 pupils as a result of the permanent 1FE expansion. 

209. Officers are satisfied that the proposed development can achieve a BREEAM Very 
Good rating, and Officers consider that the proposed design, layout and orientation of 
the new classroom block and building extension maximises their energy efficiency. 
Officers consider that the proposed construction and school derived waste 
management is sustainable and will maximise on-site recycling facilities and the re-use 
and recycling of materials used in construction, and Officers are satisfied that the 
proposed hard and soft landscaping plan will be in keeping with the existing design of 
the school site and will provide landscaping enhancements to the site. 

210. In view of the proposed use, scale and location of the proposed development, Officers 
are satisfied that the design of the proposed development will not result in any 
overlooking or loss of outlook to neighbouring residential properties nor detract from the 
character and appearance of the surrounding environment. Officers also consider that 
the proposed mitigation measures will minimise the impact of noise, vibration and dust 
emissions on local residential amenity. Furthermore, Officers are satisfied that the 
proposed drainage strategy will manage the additional surface water arising from the 
proposed development, and that the proposed foul drainage system is acceptable. 

211. Officers are satisfied that highway has sufficient capacity for the 1FE expansion and 
construction traffic, and that the proposed mitigation measures will minimise the impact 
of noise, dust, vibrations and traffic on local residential amenity and will ensure the 
safety of highway users. Officers consider that the existing access and parking 
provisions at the school site are sufficient to accommodate the 1FE expansion and 
construction deliveries and staff during the temporary construction phase of the 
development. Officers consider that there is a need for an updated School Travel Plan 
and that this will be secured by way of a planning condition. 

212. Officers consider that the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of 
inappropriateness and impact on openness, and the minimal, temporary other harm 
resulting from the proposed development, is clearly outweighed by the need for the 
development in view of paragraph 95 of the NPPF. Officers consider that the need for 
the development constitutes very special circumstances and outweighs the potential 
harm to the Green Belt. 

213. Of the consultees that have responded, none have raised an objection to the proposal, 
including Mole Valley District Council, the County Arboriculturist, the County Ecologist, 
the County Landscape Officer, the County Noise Consultant, the County Highway 
Authority, the Lead Local Flood Authority, and Sport England. A few conditions and 
informatives have been proposed by consultees for the provision of further details.  

Page 39

7



214. Five letters of representation and one petition with twenty signatures have been 
received as part of the proposal raising concerns with traffic, parking, air pollution, and 
anti-social behaviour which Officers have addressed in the report where appropriate.  

215. In view of the details in paragraphs 40 to 214 above, Officers are satisfied that the 
proposal accords with the relevant development plan policy and therefore should be 
approved. 

Recommendation 

216. That, pursuant to Regulation 3 of the Town and County Planning General Regulations 
1992, planning application ref: MO/2021/1087 be PERMITTED subject to the following 

conditions: 

Conditions: 

 IMPORTANT - CONDITION NO(S) 3 AND 7 MUST BE DISCHARGED PRIOR TO THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF THE DEVELOPMENT. 

 Approved Plans 

1. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with 
the following plans/drawings: 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1100 Rev P0 Site Location Plan 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1101 Rev P0 Existing Block Plan 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1102 Rev P2 Proposed Block Plan dated 5 May 
2021 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1103 Rev P0 Existing Roof Plan 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1104 Rev P0 Proposed Roof Plan 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1105 Rev P0 Proposed Landscaping Plan 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1110 Rev P0 Existing Ground Floor Plan 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1111 Rev P0 Existing First Floor Plan 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1112 Rev P2 Proposed Ground Flood Plan dated 5 
May 2021 

 Drawing number: HBS-00-00-DR-A-1113 Rev P2 Proposed First Floor Plan dated 5 May 
2021 

 Drawing number: HBS-EB-ZZ-DR-A-1122 Rev P2 Existing and Proposed Elevations 
Sheet 1 dated 10 May 2021 

 Drawing number: HBS-EB-ZZ-DR-A-1121 Rev P1 Existing and Proposed Elevations 
Sheet 2 dated 5 May 2021 

 Drawing number: HBS-ZZ-XX-DR-A-1122 Rev P0 Existing and Proposed Elevations 
Sheet 3 

 Drawing number: HBS-ZZ-XX-DR-A-1123 Rev P0 Existing Demountable Elevations 

 Drawing number: 14922-20 Rev A Survey Job No. 11674 dated 7 May 2021 

Page 40

7



  Hours of Construction 

2. In carrying out the development hereby permitted, no construction activities shall take 
place except between the hours of 08.00 to 18.00 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 
on Saturdays. There shall be no deliveries to or from the site between the hours of 08.00 
to 09.00, 15.00 to 16.00 and 17.00 and 18.00 on any day. There shall be no working on 
Sundays, Bank, National or Public Holidays. 

  Construction Traffic Management Plan 

3. Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, a Construction 
Management Plan (CMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the County 
Planning Authority to illustrate the following: 

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors; 

(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials; 

(c) storage of plant and materials; 

(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management); 

(e) HGV deliveries and hours of operation; 

(f) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway; 

(g) no HGV movements to or from the site shall take place between the hours of 
08.00 and 09.00, 15.00 and 16.00 and 17.00 and 18.00 on any day, nor shall the 
contractor permit any HGV's associated with the development at the site to be 
laid up, waiting, in Grange Road during these times; 

(h) on-site turning for construction vehicles; 

(i) site plan illustrating parking for vehicles of school staff, site personnel, 
operatives and visitors; loading and unloading of plant and materials; storage of 
plant and materials; and on-site turning for construction vehicles. 

The approved CMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction 
period strictly in accordance with the approved details. 

  School Travel Plan 

4. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, an updated School 
Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning 
Authority. 

 The submitted School Travel Plan shall include the following: 

 (a) measures to promote sustainable modes of transport; 

 (b) provisions for the maintenance, monitoring and review of the impact of the Plan and 
its further development; and 

 (c) contact details for the School Travel Plan Co-ordinator. 

  The approved School Travel Plan shall be adhered to and implemented in all respects. 

Page 41

7



 Tree Protection 

5. The development hereby permitted shall be carried in accordance with the approved 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan dated 4 
May 2021 submitted with the application. 

 The development shall be implemented and managed strictly in accordance with the 
approved scheme. 

 Ecology 

6. The development hereby permitted shall be carried in accordance with the approved 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal dated 17 March 2021 submitted with the application. 

 The development shall be implemented and managed strictly in accordance with the 
approved scheme. 

 Drainage 

7. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of the design of 
a surface water drainage scheme (SuDS) shall be submitted and approved in writing by 
the County Planning Authority. 

 The design must satisfy the SuDS Hierarchy and be compliant with the national Non-
Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial Statement on SuDS. The 
required drainage details shall include: 

 (a) The results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE Digest: 365 and 
confirmation of groundwater levels; 

 (b) Evidence that the proposed final solution will effectively manage the 1 in 30 & 1 in 
100 (+20% allowance for climate change) storm events, during all stages of the 
development. The final solution should follow the principles set out in the approved 
drainage strategy. If infiltration is deemed unfeasible, associated discharge rates and 
storage volumes shall be provided using a maximum discharge rate of 1 l/s; 

 (c) Detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised drainage 
layout detailing the location of drainage elements, pipe diameters, levels, and long and 
cross sections of each element including details of any flow restrictions and 
maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, inspection chambers etc.). Confirmation is 
required of a 1m unsaturated zone from the base of any proposed soakaway to the 
seasonal high groundwater level and confirmation of half-drain times; 

 (d) A plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design events or 
during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected from increased flood 
risk; 

 (e) Details of drainage management responsibilities and maintenance regimes for the 
drainage system; and 

 (f) Details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction and how 
runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be managed before the 
drainage system is operational. 

 The approved SuDS shall be adhered to and implemented strictly in accordance with the 
approved details. 

8. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a verification report 
carried out by a qualified drainage engineer shall be submitted to and approved in writing 

Page 42

7



by the County Planning Authority. The verification report shall demonstrate that the 
surface water drainage system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme, provide 
the details of any management company and state the national grid reference of any key 
drainage elements (surface water attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction devices and 
outfalls), and confirm any defects have been rectified. 

 Noise  

9. The Rating Level, LAr,Tr, of the noise emitted from all plant, associated with the 
application site shall not exceed the existing representative LA90 background sound 
level at any time by more than +5 dB(A) at the nearest noise sensitive receptor (NSR). 
The assessment shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard (BS) 
4142:2014+A1:2019 ‘Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound’. 

Reasons: 

1. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

2. In order that the development does not prejudice highway safety, nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users, nor adversely impact residential amenity, in 
accordance with Policies MOV2, MOV5, CF2, ENV22 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 
2000. 

3. In order that the development does not prejudice highway safety, nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users, nor adversely impact residential amenity, in 
accordance with Policies MOV2, MOV5, CF2, ENV22 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 
2000. 

4. In order that the development does not prejudice highway safety, nor cause 
inconvenience to other highway users, nor adversely impact residential amenity, in 
accordance with Policies MOV2, MOV5, CF2, ENV22 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 
2000. 

5. To secure the implementation of the details contained within section 2.4 and 3.0 of the 
approved Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan 
and the Arboricultural method statement by way of a condition to ensure existing trees 
are protected during the construction phase of the development in accordance with 
Policies ENV25 and ENV25 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 and Policy AS-En2 of the 
Ashtead Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017. 

6. To ensure native species are safeguarded during the construction phase of the 
development hereby permitted and to ensure the implementation of the ecological 
enhancements in accordance with Policy CS15 of the Mole Valley Core Strategy 2009 
and Policies ENV14 and ENV15 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000. 

7. To ensure the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS 
and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on or off site in accordance 
with Policy CS20 of the Mole Valley Core Strategy 2009 and Policy ENV65 of the Mole 
Valley Local Plan 2000. 

8. To ensure the Drainage System is constructed to the National Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS, and in accordance with Policy CS20 of the Mole Valley Core 
Strategy 2009 and Policy ENV65 of the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000. 

9. To protect the amenity of noise sensitive receptors during the operation of the 
development hereby permitted in accordance with Policies ENV22, MOV2 and ENV22 of 
the Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 

Page 43

7



Informatives: 

1. The attention of the applicant is drawn to the requirements of Sections 7 and 8 of the 
Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970 and to Department for Children, 
Schools and Families Building Bulletin 102 'Designing for disabled children and children 
with Special Educational Needs' published in 2008 and Department of Education Building 
Bulletin 104 'Area guidelines for SEND and alternative provision' December 2015, or any 
prescribed document replacing these notes. 

2. This approval relates only to the provisions of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
and must not be taken to imply or be construed as an approval under the Building 
Regulations 2000 or for the purposes of any other statutory provision whatsoever. 

3. Biosecurity is very important to minimise the risks of pests and diseases being imported 
into the UK and introduced into the environment. It is recommended that all trees grown 
abroad, but purchased for transplanting, shall spend at least one full growing season on 
a UK nursery and be subjected to a pest and disease control programme.  Evidence of 
this control programme, together with an audit trail of when imported trees entered the 
UK, their origin and the length of time they have been in the nursery should be requested 
before the commencement of any tree planting. If this information is not available, 
alternative trees sources should be used. You are advised to consult the relevant UK 
Government agencies such as the Animal and Plant Health Agency (APHA) and the 
Forestry Commission for current guidance, Plant Passport requirements and plant 
movement restrictions.  Quality Assurance Schemes followed by nurseries should also 
be investigated when researching suppliers. For larger planting schemes, you may wish 
to consider engaging a suitably qualified professional to oversee tree / plant specification 
and planting. 

4. The existing representative LA90 background sound level shall be determined by 
measurement that shall be sufficient to characterise the environment. The representative 
level should be justified following guidance contained within BS 4142:2014+A1:2019 and 
agreed with the County Planning Authority (CPA). 

5. If proposed works result in infiltration of surface water to ground within a Source 
Protection Zone the Environment Agency will require proof of surface water treatment to 
achieve water quality standards. 

 If there are any further queries please contact the Flood Risk Asset, Planning, and 
Programming team via SUDS@surreycc.gov.uk. Please use our reference number in 
any future correspondence. 

6.  In relation to Condition 3, the developers attention is brought to the fact that the details 
contained within the submitted Construction Management Plan dated April 2021 are 
acceptable but require the addition of a plan illustrating parking for vehicles of school 
staff, site personnel, operatives and visitors; loading and unloading of plant and 
materials; storage of plant and materials; and on-site turning for construction vehicles. 

7. Section 59 of the Highways Act permits the Highway Authority to charge developers for 
damage caused by excessive weight and movements of vehicles to and from a site. The 
Highway Authority will pass on the cost of any excess repairs compared to normal 
maintenance costs to the applicant/organisation responsible for the damage 

8. The developer is reminded that it is an offence to allow materials to be carried from the 
site and deposited on or damage the highway from uncleaned wheels or badly loaded 
vehicles. The Highway Authority will seek, wherever possible, to recover any expenses 
incurred in clearing, cleaning or repairing highway surfaces and prosecutes persistent 
offenders. (Highways Act 1980 Sections 131, 148, 149). 

Page 44

7



9. The developer would be expected to instruct an independent transportation data 
collection company to undertake the monitoring survey. This survey should conform to a 
TRICS Multi-Modal Survey format consistent with the UK Standard for Measuring Travel 
Plan Impacts as approved by the Highway Authority. To ensure that the survey 
represents typical travel patterns, the organisation taking ownership of the travel plan will 
need to agree to being surveyed only within a specified annual quarter period but with no 
further notice of the precise survey dates. The Developer would be expected to fund the 
survey validation and data entry costs. 

10. The County Highway Authority encourages the use of the Modeshift STARS online 
system for the production and maintenance of future School Travel Plans. The STARS 
system facilitates the collection of travel data from both students and staff.  

11. Management of surface water from new developments should follow Policy SI 13 
Sustainable drainage of the London Plan 2021. Where the developer proposes to 
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will 
be required. Should you require further information please refer to our website 
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Apply-and-pay-for-
services/Wastewater-services  

12. A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be required for 
discharging groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge made without a permit is 
deemed illegal and may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry 
Act 1991. Thames Water would expect the developer to demonstrate what measures 
they will undertake to minimise groundwater discharges into the public sewer. Permit 
enquiries should be directed to Thames Water’s Risk Management Team by telephoning 
020 3577 9483 or by emailing trade.effluent@thameswater.co.uk . Application forms 
should be completed on line via www.thameswater.co.uk. Please refer to the Wholesale; 
Business customers; Groundwater discharges section. 

13. Thames Water will need to check that the development doesn’t limit repair or 
maintenance activities, or inhibit the services they provide in any other way. The 
applicant is advised to read our guide working near or diverting our pipes 
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-
development/Working-near-or-diverting-our-pipes. 

14. Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted in all car 
parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol / oil 
interceptors could result in oil-polluted discharges entering local watercourses. 

15. In determining this application the County Planning Authority has worked positively and 
proactively with the applicant by: entering into pre-application discussions; assessing the 
proposals against relevant Development Plan policies and the National Planning Policy 
Framework including its associated planning practice guidance and European 
Regulations, providing feedback to the applicant where appropriate. Further, the County 
Planning Authority has: identified all material considerations; forwarded consultation 
responses to the applicant; considered representations from interested parties; liaised 
with consultees and the applicant to resolve identified issues and determined the 
application within the timeframe agreed with the applicant. The applicant has also been 
given advance sight of the draft planning conditions. This approach has been in 
accordance with the requirements of paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021. 

Page 45

7



Contact Stephanie King 

Tel. no. 020 8541 9525 

Background papers 

The deposited application documents and plans, including those amending or clarifying the 
proposal, and responses to consultations and representations received, as referred to in the 
report and included in the application file.   

For this application, the deposited application documents and plans, and response to 
consultations, are available to view on our online register. The representations received are 
publicly available to view on the district/borough planning register. The Mole Valley District 
Council planning register entry for this application can be found under:  

• MO/2021/1087  

Other documents 

The following were also referred to in the preparation of this report:  

Government Guidance  

National Planning Policy Framework  

Planning Practice Guidance 

The Development Plan  

Mole Valley Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009 

Mole Valley Local Plan 2000 

Ashtead Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 

Other Documents 

SCC Vehicular and Cycle Parking Guidance (2018) 

 

 

Page 46

7

https://planning.surreycc.gov.uk/planappdisp.aspx?AppNo=SCC%20Ref%202021/0079
https://www.molevalley.gov.uk/swiftlg/apas/run/WPHAPPDETAIL.DisplayUrl?theApnID=MO/2021/1087
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/revised-national-planning-policy-framework
http://planningguidance.communities.gov.uk/
http://www.planvu.co.uk/mvdc/contents_written_cs.htm
http://www.planvu.co.uk/mvdc/contents_written.htm
https://www.molevalley.gov.uk/home/building-planning/local-plans/neighbourhood-planning
https://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/policies-plans-consultations/transport-plan/surrey-transport-plan-strategies/parking-strategy


0 60 120Metres¯
Grid North Printed on: 21/06/2021

© Crow n copyrig ht. All rig hts reserved Su rrey Cou nty Cou ncil, 100019613, 2021 Note: This plan is for indicative pu rposes only

Scale: 1:2050

Permanent one form of entry expansion comprising
tw o storey extension to the existing  Earl Bu ilding  to
provide additional teaching  and su pporting
accommodation; demolition of existing  ‘Woodlands
Bu ilding ’ and erection of a replacement tw o storey
standalone block comprising  teaching  and
su pporting  accommodation; permanent retention of
tw o demou ntable classroom u nits; modification of
existing  Main Bu ilding  and Performing  Arts Bu ilding
elevations to provide new  external w indow s and
doors to su it altered internal layou t and ventilation
strateg y; and associated external w orks and
landscaping .

Ref No:
SCC Ref 2021/0079

Site Location:

Application nu mbers:

Electoral divisions:
 MO/2021/1087 

    Ashtead   

St Andrews RC School, Grange Road, Leatherhead Surrey KT22 7JP

Application site

Page 47

7



This page is intentionally left blank



2018 Aerial Photos

Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Aerial 1 :   St Andrews RC School, Grange Road, 

Leatherhead

All boundaries are approximate

P
age 49

7



2018 Aerial Photos

Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Aerial 2 :   St Andrews RC School, Grange Road, 

Leatherhead

All boundaries are approximate

P
age 50

7



2018 Aerial Photos

Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Aerial 3 :   St Andrews RC School, Grange Road, 

Leatherhead

All boundaries are approximate

P
age 51

7



Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Figure 1 Proposed Block Plan dated 5 May 2021

P
age 52

7



Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Figure 2 Existing and Proposed Elevations Sheet 1 

dated 10 May 2021

P
age 53

7



Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Figure 3 Existing and Proposed Elevations Sheet 2 

dated 5 May 2021

P
age 54

7



Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Figure 4 Existing Demountable Elevations

P
age 55

7



Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Figure 5       Woodlands Building

P
age 56

7



Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Figure 6         Proposed new classroom block location

P
age 57

7



Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Figure 7 View looking north to Earl Building and 

extension area with demountables to the right

P
age 58

7



Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Figure 8      View looking north along Grange Road with site 

entrance on the left

P
age 59

7



Application Number : MO/2021/1087

Figure 9         View looking south along Grange Road

P
age 60

7



Document is Restricted

Page 61

9

Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	Minutes

	7 Surrey County Council Proposal MO/2021/1087 - St Andrews RC School, Grange Road, Leatherhead Surrey KT22 7JP
	0079Plan1StAndrews
	v13 StAndrewsP and R 8Sept21

	9 ENFORCEMENT UPDATE



